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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of

Gripwel Fasteners Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Finam:ial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Gripwel Fasteners Private Limited
(“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, notes to financial statements
and a summary of the accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS™) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2025, its profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the
vear ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(*SAs”) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Lthics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (*ICAI") together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the [CAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the andit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the Financial Statements. '

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
——_in our audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. These matters
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were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context. We have
determined the matiers described below to be the key audit maters to be communicated in our
report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report, including in relation {o these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our
audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the

basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements,

Description of Key Audit Matter

a. Revenue recognition - See note 2.6 and note 20 to the financial statements

manufacturing facilities located in Noida,
India.

Revenue is recognised based on the
accounting policies disclosed in the note 2.6
to the financial statements.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized
at the moment when customer obtains
control of the goods at different point in time
based delivery terms. Accordingly, the
Group satisfies its performance obligation at
the time of dispatch of goods from factory/
stockyard/ storage area/ port as the case may
be; and is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, net of
returns and allowances, trade discounts,
claims paid and volume rebates.

Revenue is presented net of Goods and
Service Tax, wherever applicable. The
company uses a variety of shipment terms
with customers across its operating markets
which has an impact on the timing of revenue
recognition. Given the nature of industry in
which the company operates and given the
fact that the company’s ascertainment of
timing of revenue recognition, is a key audit
consideration for sales transactions occurring
at or near to the year end.

Refer note 2.6 and note 20 of the Financial
Statements,

Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our
audit
The Company has revenue from | Our audit procedures included but not

limited to;

- We obtained inco-terms and confirmed our
understanding of the Company's sales
process from initiation to collection of
receivables,  including  design  and
implementation of controls and tested the
operating effectiveness of these controls,

-We read and understood the Company's
accounting policy for recognition of revenue
for each stream as per “Ind AS 115"

-We performed transactions testing based on
a representative sampling of the sales orders
to assess revenue recognition and recognition
of trade receivables including transactions
ocecurring at or near the year end.

-We performed cut off testing for sales made
near the reporting date and tested whether the
revenue was recognised in the appropriate
period by testing shipping records and sales
invoices for sample transactions and tested
the management assessment involved in this
process, wherever applicable.

- Performed reconciliation of revenue with
GST returns filed with the Government.




Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report,
Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have -perfonned, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, other comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial stalements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concermn and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.




Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: :

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

s  Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of
the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system inplace and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

s  FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

s  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Cur conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
(ii} to evaluate the effect of any identified misstaterents in the financial staternents.




We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a)

b)

d)

g)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the
matters stated in the paragraph 2(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account,

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

with respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 1(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) of
the Act and paragraph 2 (vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in “Annexure A”, Our report expresses an unmodified opmion
on the adequacy and operative effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial
controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:




In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year
is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

2. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.

ii.

1ii.

iv.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements (Refer Note 31 to the financial statements).

The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts.

There were no amounts which were required Lo be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

» directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of
the Company; or

» provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any persons or
entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall:

+ directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of
the Funding Party; or

= provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and



(¢) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate
that the representations under sub-clause {iv) (a) and (iv) (b) contain any
material mis-statement.

v) The dividend declared or paid during the year by the Company is in compliance
with Section 123 of the Act.

vi) The reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 is applicable from 1 April, 2023:

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) and the same has operated throughout the year for
all relevant transactions recorded in the software except that audit trail feature was
not enabled at the database level of accounting software to log any direct data
changes. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any
instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with and the audit trail has been
preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

3. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For 8. C, Varma and Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn, No: 000533N

. Varma
Partner
M.No.: 011450

UDIN : 2 So\WmKe @OV RE R20E

Place : New Delhi
Dated : 7§ MAY 2025




Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1(g} under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the Members of Gripwel Fasteners Private Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Gripwel Fasteners
Private Limited (“the Company™) as at 31% March, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Aunditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all maierial respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selecied depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting of the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
_reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
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financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at 315 March, 2025, based on the criteria for internal financial
control over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For 8. C. Varma and Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No: 000533N

T

Partner
M.No. : 011450

UDIN : 2 Sl RnT IRE 2N

Place : New Delhi
Dated 7§ MAY 2025




Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the Members of Gripwel Fasteners Private Limited of even date)

To the best of our information and accerding to the explanations provided to us by the Company
and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we report
that:

In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(a) (1) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant
details of right of use assets.

(2) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
Intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its Property,
Plant and Equipment and right of use assets by which Property, Plant and
Equipment and right of use assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of
three to five years, In accordance with this programme certain Property, Plant and
Equipment were verified during the year and no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification
is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the title deeds of immovable properties
are held in the name of the company.

In respect of immovable properties been taken on lease and disclosed as property,
plant and equipment in the financial statements, the lease agreements are in the
name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of'its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
right of-use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 31, 2025 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder.

ii. (a) The inventory has been physically verified at the end of the year by the management.

In our opinion, the coverage, frequency and procedure of such physical verification
is appropriate. No discrepancies exceeding of 10% or more in the aggregate for each
class of inventory were noticed during such physical verification.

(b) the company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore
rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of
current assets. The quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with such

1=



ii.

iv,

vi.

vil.

banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account of the
Company.

During the year, the company has not made invesiments in, provided guarantee or
security or granted loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured,
to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties.

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
E E pamny
granted and stood any guarantees. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii)(a) of the Order is

not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
granted and stood any guarantees. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii)(b) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(¢) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
granted loans and advances in the nature of loans. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii)(c)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no overdue
amounts of more than ninety days as the company has not granted loans or
advances in the nature of loans. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii)(d) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

() According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
granted loans and advances in the nature of loans. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii)(e)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
granted loans and advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or
without specifying any terms or period of repayment. Accordingly, paragraph
3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
provisions of sec. 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied
with in respect of loans given, investments made, guarantees and securities
provided.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amount which are deemed to be
deposits within the meaning of directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India,
provisions of Section 73 to 76 of the Act, any other relevant provisions of the Act
and the relevant rules framed there under and therefore provisions of clause 3(v) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the company pursuant to
the Companies (Cost Accounting Records) Rules, 2014 prescribed by the Central
Government under section 148(1) of the Act and are of the opinion that prima facie
the prescribed cost records have been maintained. We have, however, not made a
detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are
accurate and complete.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

. examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the
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books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income tax, goods and service tax, duty of customs,
cess, sales tax, service tax and value added tax and other material statutory dues
have been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the
appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations given to
us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income lax, goods and service tax, duty of customs, cess, sales tax,
service tax and value added tax and other material statutory dues were in arrears
as at 31st March, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues as referred
to in sub clause (a) above which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute.

viii. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
examination of the records of the Company, the company has no transactions, not
recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

ix.  (a)In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on
examination of the records of the Company, the company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans and other borrowings or in payment of interest thereon to any
lender during the year,

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

(¢) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no unutilized
term loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of
the Order is not applicable.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised
on short term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term
purposes by the Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company
has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or fo meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries and hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is
not applicable.

(f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting on clause
3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

X. (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and
hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

xi.  (a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed
or reported during the year.




(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed
in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies {Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this
report.

(¢) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not received
any whistle blower complaints during the year.

xii,  According to the information and explanation given to us, the company is not a “Nidhi
Company”. Accordingly, paragraph (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

xiii. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us and based
on our examination of the records of the Company, all transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the
details have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable
Accounting Standards.

xiv  (a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate
with the size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the
Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of
our audit procedures.

xv.  According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with him, Accordingly, paragraph
3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi. (&) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and
(¢) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in
the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our
audit and the immediately preceding financial year.

xvifi. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

xix.  On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that
this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that
our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one




year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they
fall due.

xx.  (a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are
required to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the
Act), in compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of Section 135 of the Act. This
matter has been disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements.

(b) In respect of ongoing projects, the company has transferred unspent CSR. amount as
at the end of the previous financial year, to a Special account within a period of 30 days
from the end of the said financial year in compliance with the provision of section
135(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. This matter has been disclosed in note 36 to the
financial statements.

xxi. The company does not have any subsidiary companies and hence requirement of
preparing consolidated financial statements are not applicable to the company.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For 8. C. Varma and Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No: 000533

s

Partner
M.No.: 011450

UDIN : 280\ ga @M T X RE 220g

Place : New Delhi
Dated : 76 MAY 200




Balance Sheet Q Gripwel Fasteners Private Limited
£s 2t 31at March, 2025

[Tt

JME N il |
Netes Az at As at
315t March, 2035 31st March, 2024

ASSETS gar
HON-CURRENT ASSETS - vl B
Praperty, plant and equipment 3 136,55 (7 e i 16748
Rizhr-nf-Lise Assets 3 1515 12.65
Capital wirk-in-progress 3 5,10 145
Dther intamgisle assets | 0,24 032
Flnancial assets ) o

Irvestments 4 6.08 .

Cther financigl assels = 9.8 6.50
Defzrred tax assets inet) S 1 L2 532 0.8
Current tax assets (net) B § el 1.0y
[ther assets ] i oy TEI.LI} At s il
Total nan-current assets 188,57 16915
CLIRREMT ASSETS
Inventones ) 7 286,13 233,25
Firancial assels i —=—=

nvestments - ] 18.65 6132

Trede receivables . 132 ER 26517

Cash and cash eouiwvalents 10 e 2165 24560

Derivetive instruments ) ! - 380

Laars 11 Nk 037 0.34
Current tax assets {net| 70 d 2
ther azsets - [ 1638 ;.
Total .currr,_tpl assets - 503,46
Total Assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY - _

Equity share capitel 12 ! ol 57.60

Other equity . 13 408,27

Totel equity

LIABILITIES o

NON-CLIRRENT LABILITIES - I
Financizl liati I-ries_ -

Lease lizbilities ] L5 10.51 535
Pravisiors - 3613, 3437
Total nan-currert liabilities B - 46,64 40.72
CURRENT LIABILITIES ) .

Financizl liabilities ™

Baorrawings 14 T 111.8¢ BEEELS

Lease Lzhilities 15 537 1.8

ij.e.*l'.-aﬂl.'a nEtruments - 3.£3 % &
__Trashe payables dus ta: == 19

o enlerprisss dng sma |Q'I'l'-'f"_FEr|_5_E_!S lé.iD alodr Al
Other than micra erterprises and small enterprses - §3.52 110,04
Crther lizhilities 18 29.85 23.83
Provisions 18 1043 540
Current tax payshle T I - g 4.20
Tetal current lizbilities - JERST
Total equity and lisbilities
surmmary of accourting golices 182
See a-;:l:urrlpur'l.-'i-rTa.NotE.’-.tnr- the Financial sTatements
As per cur repart of even date attached, Forand an behalf of Soard of Directors of
For5.C, VASMA AND CO. Gripwel Fasteners Private Limited
Charlered Accauntants

Firm R@mnb.ﬁw
[Fartner)
rembership Ma. 012850

Place : New Delhi
Date : 26ch May 2025

(whole-time Directar)
[ZIM: D01 1EVE] [N 1073 7R01)




Statement of Profit and Loss - Q Gripwel| Fasteners Private Limited

For the year ended 31st March, 2025 b

R TR

Nates ‘Year ended ‘fear ended
3151 March, 2025 315t March, 2024

NCOME
Fevernue [ram operabons 20 180767 1,540,456
Other income 21 b.54 11.28
Taotal Incorme ) _ :
EXPEMSES
Cost of materials consumed . i Ged 4] 08 93
Purchases of stack-in-trade . diijﬂ 43847
Changes In inwentories of finished goods, work-in-progress, stock-in-trade e e
and scrap i3 499 42.06
Employes bensfits expanse ia 25061 263.60
Finznce costs o 2"- = 9.71 523
Depreciatan and amortization expenses 2I.', i LR 2685
Dther E[IE NSRS . 27 S 828
Total expenses g
Frofit before tax —= - 24451 | IRA3S
TAX EXPENSES 28
Current tax 6515 T4.57
Carlier years . (0.02) 0.07
Cefarrad tax [ [2.22) 10.28)
Total tax expenses . 6331 7356

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items that will not ke reclassifled to Srefls ar Loss

Re-measeremend gains il;:ussng_s_]_!:!f_r_lef!ned henefit plans 10.74] _2.4?
Inzome tax effect ) . 0.20 (062}
o {0.59] 185

Izemns that will be reclassitied ta Prolil or Loss

Effective portian of cash flow hedas - [7.23] 8.54

Ircome tax effect Tt 215}
B i {5.41] £.39

Tetal cther com prenensive income,f|loss) for the year [net of tax) 16.00)

Total comprehensive Income for the year

EAAMINGS PER EQUITY SHARE OF FACE WALUE OF ¥ 10 EACH - 29

Baziciln ¥ | ) 3146 36,56
Diluted (in &) ’ ) 31.46 36,56
Summary of accounting policies 182

Lee accompanying Motes to the Financizl Statements

a5 per our repart of even date attached. Forand on behalf of Bozrd of Directors of
For 5.0, WARRMA AND CO. Gripwel Fastenars Private Limited
Chartered Accountants

Firrm Regigersicn Mo 0EEEN

SSEETTTmE B
(Partner]
Werhbershlp Mo 011450

Place : Mew Delhl (W hole-tme Directar)
Date ; 26th May 2025 |DlM: 0001147 8] [ 2 1073 VRO ]




Statement of Cash Flow

For the yeas ended 31st March 2025

Gripwel Fasteners Private Limited

R TR in MlGn |
Farticular Year #nded Year ended
A1sk March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Ao CASH FLOW FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES: -
_ Profit before tax B - 2AA%L 2B1.25
_ Adjustmentsfor; L,
Depracation ard smaortization expenses 3457 26,89
Interest expenses . &R 178
It income T i {.]:...BE:-I | (3.46]
Deferrad tax 282 -
Interest on lease liabilities ] 061 051
Exprense or emalovee stock option scherme 1.25 0.13
(Profit] f loss on sale of property, slant &nd equioment 10.02) 0.7
Fixed assets written-off - 037 -
Urrezlised fare ér;-e-x.-:.!';énge (gain) loss e 451 12.54]
Met gain on fair va vation of financial Instrurr ents (F'-.-'TP-L:I 4 Q.16 bloe |
Operating srofit before working capital changes - 2BE.07 A0E. 48
.ﬂ..djustmen:s for changes in working capital -
increasefidacreasel in Icans_ (0.03] 1037
jIncrease)/decrease in ather financial assets (not-current) - (2.74] 0.04
lnerease)fdecrease in oiber non-current fsens 38D IZ._BE!t
IIn-:-'-E:..ase.l.l'-.;'En:rease in ‘nventories B N 712 £9.87
lIncrease)/decrease In trade receival 23 29.08 13726
||I'Il.?'!"ﬂ_!.i.l‘;:|_.f:_:le~::lliﬁ.‘ut! In cuirant tas assats (et (553 Q.03
lIncreasel/cecrease in other curreat assels i2-4]"|- [12_‘!]1
Increase.-'ﬂjz:-reése] in provisions {1on-currert) 047 091
Increase(decrease) in trade payvablas (18.33] 1E.13
Incroassf{decrease] in other cur-ent labi ities 6102 (34.48)
Increase/(decreasa) in cur-ert max liasilities a.20) [8.26)
H-:reese.-‘(decr;é-] .:"'l.i:.-.l.'c:x:'.isi-:lns lcurmant| o 1.03 1.12
Cash generated from/{used in) operations . -
_ Income e (paid) f refunds 53.31 74,64
Mt cash flow from/ jused in| operating activities la]
B. Cash flow from Investing activities:
Payments for purchase ol croperly, plart and eqaipmeat and
capital woork r progress {13,953} 146.79)
Proceeds from sl of procedy, plant and squipment = 0.58 1340
~ {Investrert)/Rademrptian in f rancislinstrurert 3251 2879
Interest received = 1.06 3.08
Irsestment In Touity shares of Other comparies B {6.08) <
Met cash flow from/ [used in| investing activities (b)
C. Cash flow frarm flnancing actvitles —
Proceeds/{resayment) frem short tenm ho-rowings 20.48 ad EILEL
~Interest an lease liabilities [0.61) | {051
Payrrient of Lease Liabil ties [4.£4) EEE]
i 1689 2.73)

d on pnutty shares

{501:21]

d = i [264.95
f [used in} financing activities (o) — it e m



Statement of Cash Flow 0 Gripwel Fasteners Private Limited
Fartha year eadad 325t March, 20325

razr L A S T
Met increase/[decrease) in cash and cash equwvalents [a+o4c) [2.95] ] ;1595]
Dpening balance of cash and cash eruivaients 34,60 A0.52
Closing balance of cash and cash eguivalerts [Refer Note 10] _ !
Cash and cash eguivalents comprises : 21.685 2460
Cash in hand - o 011 .20,
Balarzes witn banks 3154 440

The azove Szatement of Cash Flows has been presared wrder the “Indirect Method” as set cutin the Indisr Acsounting Stancasd (nd A5-7) - “Slalement
of Cash Flows®

An per aur reporl of even date attached Farand an behalf of Board of Diraczors of
For 5.C VARMA AND 0O, Gripwel Faszeners Frivate Umites
Chartered Azcountants

Flrmgfe WO ODO535N
S ,
31 s

-~

alrma
\Bartrer)
“emaesstip Me 0711450

by dingh Sathi
(Whia-tima IV -eotor)
(D% 10737801

Flace : Mew Delhi W ErBging Dinecto
Dare : 26th May 2025 [CiM: 000114 48]




Statement of Change in Equity 0 Gripwel Fasteners Private Limited
Fer the year endea 315t March, 2025 -

A, EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

(1B in pd llian )
Amount
Balance at 1st April, 20&3 = X S7ED
Change dur'r__!_ Ihl-_',-mr A033-74 -
Balance at 1st April, 2024 - 57.60
Change during the year 2034-25 i
Balance at 31st hiarch, 2025 i e i |
B. OTHER ECUITY
MR in K il )
terns of other
Reserves and Surplus comaorehensive
ircome
Total
Particulars Genaral reserve  Retaines earings ;f;::_::i:a'i:::
Balance as at 1st April, 2024 - ) 12 95 : A87.7R 2.H3 4876
Prafit for the year - 18120 TE1L20
Cither com prehensive income Tar the year - 10,5491 15450 (6001
Tatal comr prehensive income for the year - 1205 55339 12E8) ErR-1
ES0F granzad dunng the year 1.76 - 1.28
1205 564,65 12 5By G74.17
Fayment of dividend on equ ty shares - 12b4.95] - (264 95]
Balarce as at 31st March, 2025 1205 350,70 |2.58) 40817
LR Ty
Items of ather
Reserves and Surplus compre hersive
income
Taotal
: ' - Effective portion
Farticulars Gereral reserve  Retained garnings 5 Cash o hEe
Balance as at 15t april, 2023 1105 17132 12.56] 37981
Fro®t for the vear N - 210.5% - 21058
Omer comprenensve income for the vear - 1.ER (.38 274
Taotal compretens e income for the yeas L35 083,75 .83 G598 64
ESCP grarted during tﬁe wear i3 e 0ES
205 33 B% .83 98,77
Fayrrert of dividend on squity shares - (501.11) - 1501.41)
Balance as at 315t Warch, 2024 1205 482 TR 783 43766
As 2Er ou report of ever dete attached, Far and on aenal® of Boaro of Dinectc s of
Far 5.C. VARMA AND 0, Gripwel Fasteners Privaze Limited

Chartered Azzountants
Firm Registration Mo G00533N

L Warma
[Parmear]
Mambearstip Ma. 011450

Place : New Dalhi : (whiole-7me Director)
Diate @ 25th May 2025 (M 2001147 8) [DiM ¢ 10757EDL)




Motes o Gripwel Fasteners Private Limited

to the Financial Atatements for the year ended 31t March, 2025 vamaan

1} Corporate Inforrmation

Gripwel Fasteners Private Umited (“the Company®) is & Cempany (limised by shares) incorporated wnder the provisions of Companies Act, 1358, The Comepany is
domiciles in Indis having registered office a7 Gripws House, Block-3 C6 & 7, Vasart Kunj, New Delhi 110070, India. The Commpary is enfaged rto marubactiring
having Facility at MNoida. The malq objects of. inter-alia, manufacturing, sale ans export of precision engineering products and allied enginesring producis. The
Cemgany's hading company 5 Uniparzs Inda Lirited

The Company cazars both e domestic and internaticnal markess. The Company’s CIN is U292140L2005FTCI37 207,

2] SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
7.1) Basls of Freparation

Tre Snancizl statements arn prepared on an accraal bass under hstorical cost convertion except for cestaor Prancias inarumerts waich gre meascred az far vaue
Tresz financia’ siaternenls have beer prepared in zccordance with the Indian Sczountirg Stancards Jind A5) as prescr 22d undzr Section 133 of the Coneparies Ao,
F01E ("The act”) and other relevant provisions of the Act, as spplicable

I'he fnancizl statements are preserted in indian Bupees (7], whicn s asc its functional currenoy a2 all values are rounded to the nezrest mellion (°0,00,000), except
when otherwise indicated.

The Compary had prepares the Finarrial staternents aq the basis that it will centnue to cperste 83 a going concem.
220 Current versus non-curcent classification

Tha assets arnd lazilities are presented as current or ran-cuirent in 218 calance $1eet oy tha compary.

An asset is treated as cureeat when it s expectad that it wil 32 realised or intended to be sold of corsurmed in normal operating oycle, s held primarily For trading
purpases, it is expected 1o be realizad within twaive months a®er the reporting perod o cash or casr equivalents un'ess restrictad from being exchanged or uies o
settle a lability for 2t least twalve months a%er the resarting pericd.

All other assets are reated as non-curraat in the balarce sneat

& liability is tregted as current when it & expacted to be settled in nosmal aperating cvcle, if 118 held srimarily for the surpose of frading, itis due to be settled wityn
twehe months after Tz end of the repor rg pericd o thare 5 ro unconditonzl nghs to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months aftar the
repating period

The cornpary classifies a other azilioes as non-currert in the balanon sheet

The carmpany identfies its operating cvele as twelve montns,

Deferrad tax asset and lizpilities are cassified as non-cur-ert gssets and lalites in the baliece sheet,

2.3} Critical Accourting Judgments & key sources of Estimation uncertainties

The fullawing are Te crivcal judgmants 2nd the key astimates conceming (he future thet managemert 1as made in the prooess of applying the Compary's accounting
policies and thesa rray have tiz most Tanificant effect on the amouats recognized in the francia’ stazenents or have @ significant rsk of causing a maternal
adjustmeant te the carrving amournts of & md liabllities within the nesxt financial yvear, The estimates and associates assumptions are based on historical
experierces ard otrer faciors that are cossiered to be relevant These estimates and underlying assurnptens are reviewsd on an ongeing sasis, Revisicn of
accounling estimates ase recognised in the ceriad in which the estimates are rewised il the revision affects only that period or in e perod of the revision and future
periods whers revision affecs goth current and future pericds




Motes 0 Gripwel Fasteners Private Limited

to the Financial Statements for the year onded 315t March, 2025 LT

Inzangible Asswts

Capitalization of cast for intang ble ass2s and ntanagio 2 assets under developrment is bases on Tz mansgement judgment that techneogical and econormic feass bilivg
iz confirmed and assst: urder develogment will generate ecenomic fenefits in future, Based on the swsloation carsied odt, the company's managerrert has
determined that there are 1o Factars which indicate that those assets have sufferad any i parment loss,

Critical Accounting ludgments & Key Lources of Estimation uncertalsties

The fallew rg are the critical judgmants and the ey £5t mates concerning the futuse tnat management fas made in the process of applying the Groop's acceurling
policies ard thase may heve tha most sigrificant offecs on the amaurts recognized in the financial slatements or have a sigrificant risg of cauging a material
adjustmert to the carryivg amounts of assets and Gaklities witnn e pext firaacia yeas. The estimates and assocated assumctions are based on hiszorical
eaperienees and ater factors that are considered to be relevant. The estimates and ardesing assamotions are ray ewed or 8r on-aoing basis. Revision of accounting
estimates are recognisec in e perad inowhich the estimatas are revised i the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revisios and fature seiods
where rev s on affzcts both currert and futire periods

Intangible Assets

Capitalization of cost for intangible assets and intangible assens ander development is based on the management judament that technological ard econom ¢ feasibilty
ie e firrned and assets undes developrnent will genarate eccnorric benefizs in future. Bazad on the evaluation carried out, the Group's maragemest has deterrmined
that thare are no “actors wnich ndicate that tose assets nave suffered any impairment loss.

Useful Ife of depreciable Assets

Management reviews the useful life of deprecable ascets ar sach reporting date, As &t March 31, 2025, manapement assessed that e veseful li%e represents e
expectad utilty of the assets by the company. Fusther there = no signifcant change in veefyl life 83 corrpared to the previcws year

Imzalrment of non-financial assets

The compary assesses at pachk report ng datle waetner there 5 oan indication that a1 asset may be Impalred 1 any Indication exist, or when annual moairment testing
Tor an agset is required, 1ne Cormpary esTimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amourt i@ the higher of ar asset's or Cash Geaesating Linit's
(CGL) fair value less costs of d sposa and iz valug inase. |t & determingd fior an ircividual asset, unless the asset or CELL exceeds ifs recoveranle amount, te adsat &
consdered mpaited and is writter down 1o its recoverable amount,

I assessing the vave In use, the estimated futere cash flows are discounted lo their present valas using & pre-tas discourt rate that reflects current markst
srsessments of the time value of marey and risks speailic To the assel in geterminiag the faic value less costs to disposal, recent markat transacticn s sre zakan ino
puenuel, Il ne seah lransactions cas be identifad, a1 aagroprate valuation model 5 used

Intang ble assets ander dovelopment ane lested Tor irmpairment annoally. Fnsairmant leages includ g impairment an Invertor es are reccgnised in the statermert of
pradil and loss.

Imzairment of finarclal assets

The i pairrment pravisions Tor financial assets are bazed on assunations 2bout risg of default and exzectec loss rates. The Company uses judgmant in making these
assumpticas ard selecting the Inputs to the impairmen: calculation, pasad on Company’s past history, existing market condtions as well as foreard [ooking 250 mates
atthe end of gach r2aorting geriod

Defined benefit plans

The zost of the defred Genefit gratutty plar, sther post-emplogment plans and the present valoe of the gratuity obligation is determoned using actuarizl valuazors,
&n actuartial valuation inve wes making varicas assurnplicns that may difer from actual develogments in the future. These nclude the determination of the discount
rale, Tuture salary increases and martalicy rates, Due te the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term neture, & defired benetit obligatan is nighty
sensitive ta changes in these assumptions. Al assurrptions are reviewed at each reporting cate

The mortality rate is based or puslicly avaiakbie mortatty tables Tor ndia, Those mortality tazles tens to changa anly at interval in response to demegraphiz charges,




Notes 0 Gripwel Fasteners Private Limited

o tne Financial Statements for the year ended 3157 March, 2025 Mihars

Fair value measurement of financial Instruments

‘\When the fair values of financial assets and financial lasilities recorged v the balanee sheet cannot be measured bazad on cuoted prices in active markets, their Faor
walue is measurad using waluation technigues including Tre DCF rmodel. The i puts to these reodels are tager from observable markets whone possible, bul whers This
is net feasizie, a degres of jJudgment Is requred n 2stablisning “air values Jecpments incluce corsiderations of inputs such as liquigity res, credit rek ana volatilizg.
Changes in asturn pticns abawt these factors could affect the reparted fair va ue of financial instrurments,

Income tax and deterres tax
sign ficant mzaragemert judament is requires to determine the ameunt of deferred tax assels thal cen be recognised, based upan the likely tinning and te level o
future taxable profits togethor with futere b planning sTrlegies,

2.4} Financial Instrurnenits
A financi insteameant & any cantract that gives rise to a financia: asset of one entizy and 8 finsncial Fab'lity or equity instrumaent of anctber entity,

Inltial Recogntion and measurement
Cniritial recognizor, all the fizancial ssets and lizbilites are recognized at their fa r value olus o= minas, in the case of a finsrcial asset or financal liability aot at Tair
waie theough prafit o- loss (FYTPL), transaction costs that are directly amributable o the soquisition o issue of the francia’ assel e lirancial laziliog,

All fingncial dapilities sre recognosed initially at fair value and, in the cace of loans, dorawings and aayaboes, ret of directly atzribuzalr & transaction cots,

The Comzany's financial lamlities include wrade and other payan es, loans and berrowings inc wding bank overdra®s and aesivative financial instroments,

Bubseguent measdrement

[i] Financial assets carried ab amosdised cost

A frarcial azset is subsequently measdsred at amortsed cost i s Peld within o business rmodel whase objgctive s to nold the 2ssetin arder to collact contractusl
cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial assel give rae on specfiee dates to cash flows Tat ére solely payrnerts of prircioal and interes: on the privcipal
amaount oulstanding.

The wrace & other recenables, after nitial messuremant are subsequenty messered al amatised cost using the effective inoerest rate (EIR] metnod. Ammorzsed cost is
calculates by taging into account any discount or sremicm on aceuisition ana Fess of costs atare anontegral part of the EIR. The EIR arrort zatior is includes in other
income in the statenent of profit and less, Tre ocdeas anising foor impairment are -ecognised inTh2 stazement of profit and loss,

{i") Finangial assels al fair value through others comprehensive income [(FYTOCH)

& fimancial asset is subsesuently measured al fair valee through ather comarehensive incore if i1 is neid within 8 busingss model whose objective is achiewed by both
cellectivg coniractual cash Flows and sellisg financial assets, and the contractua’ serms of the francia! asset give rise on ssecitied dates to cash Nows that are solely
payments of principal and aterest on the pnacipal amount 2utstarding.

Financ al assets included within the FYTOC! are measurad initially as well as at gach recorting date st fair valoe, Fair value movemeans are recognizad in the other
comprehensive incsme (DO, Howeser, [he comaany (2cognizes INTErest nCome, IMpa smett ‘osses, revessals anc foreipn exchanae gain or loss in the statement af
s s Oa derecognition of the asset, cumulatve gair or loss previously recognised i1 OO0 is reclassified fram the souity ta staternent of proft and loss.
Interest earned whilst holdirg FWTOC! debt instrumnent is reportad as interest incoma using the EIR methos,

profi

{iii] Financial assats at fair value through prafit or loss (FVTPL)
A financial azset which is not classified inary of the above categores i sobseguently measured at fair value through profit or loss,
(iv] Financial liabilities

) Thee Timarzial lazilities are subseguently carrled at arrortzed cost using the effective interest rate methca. For trade and ather pavakles maturiag within ong vear
frarm the balance sheet cata, the carrying amounts agorox mate fair value due to the shortterm maturity of these instrurnents. This category also includes denvatve
financlal instrurrerts ertered inta by the Company that sre not desigrated os bedging irstruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind A5 109,




Notes 0 Gripwel Fasteners Private Limited

to the Financial Staterments for the year ended 315t March, 2025 g

by Loans and borrowings o the categary most «elevant to the Company. Aftarinital recognition, interes
At

aring loans and borrowings ate subsequenty measured al
i eosl usieg T8 EIR methed. Gars and losses sre recogrised in staternent of zrofit and loss when the Labities are derecogn’zed as well as threagh the EIR
amertisation progess. In toe calculation of amortized cost, discaunt or premium on acgaeticn and fees or costs thet are an integral part of the 217 are taken into
account. This catepory generally applies 1o borrowings.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The farr valve of financal instruments is determines dsing the velugtion technicues tnat are appropriate in the croumstances and for which suffcient data are
available to mesare fair value, makimising the use of relevant cbservable insuets ans minionisieg the use of uncezervacle inputs

cash flow analys's ana valuation ceriles by the exteral valuer,
In rase of firancil imstruments &t ere TRE CarTylng amount spproxirates fair wa ve dus to the short reaturity of those instruments, car~ving ameunt is considered as
Tair walue,

Derecognition of financial instrument

& francia asset s derecopnized wie the conracteal Fghts to the cash flows from the financia’ asset exn re o has wansfarres the linancial asset and the trarsfar
qualifes for derecognition under Ine 5109

When the Cormpany Fas transferred 155 rights to reczve casn flows f-om an asset or has entered into a pass threwgt arrangemant, 't evaluaies if and to what extent 71
has relained the rlsks and rewards of ownershiz, When it has noither transferred nor retaired substantially a0l of Tne risks and rewards of (he aswet, ror transferres
cortre: of e asset, the Company continues te recognise the transferes asset to the extert of the Company's cantruing involvemnent. In that case, the Cormpary also
recopnisss 8 assoristed liability, The trarslerrad asset and the asscciates [aa ity are measured on a Dasis that reflects the rights ans cbligations that T1e Corrpany
nas retainad

& francia lizbilizy 15 cerecognized when the obligation specified in tre contract is decharges or cancelled or expitea. When an existing Tzarcial Daxlity = replaced oy
ancther from the same lendzr on supstantislly Sillerent terms, o the w2ems of a1 existing | azility ane susstantaly modifed, such an eschange or mod fication is

trester as the cerecogniten of the orginal lablity and the secogritict of a new liabiity. The difference v the respective carrving amounts is =ecognised n the
statenent of profitans loss,

3.5 Invertaries
Invertorias are valuad as below:
(i) Raw Paterials, Fac<ing Materals and Consumable Stores & Spares are wlued b cost camgated on FIFD methed.

{if] Werrk-in-progress are va'ved at materials cost plus spprogriate shase of labour and proguct on overheads pourred till the stage of comploton of production.

(i1} Fninked Goods/Traces Goods asevaluad at iower of the costor nat reatizabis value.

(iw) Borap is walued at aet realizable value calculated based on [ast morth's average realization.

2 ) Aevenue Recognition

Asverue |s recogn sad to the extant itis probable that the economi: senafits will fiow to the Company and the revenue can be reiasly measuced, regardless of when

the payment is being mace, Revenue is rmeasares at the fair valce of the consideration recever or receivable, taking into account cantracoaly defines terms of
zaymant and sxcluding taxes o duties collectes on behalf of the government.

Revenue & a-esantsd net of Goods and Service Tox, whereeer applicable, Howevar, Soods & Service Tax (G5T) is not received by The Comaany on its own aooourt.
Ratrer, 't is tax col'ectes on value seded 1o the commodity by the seller on bekaf of the government. Accordingly, these ase exclugesd fram revenua,

Tae specific racognition criteria as described below must alsn e mel selore revendas & recognized.
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Sale of Goods

Remes e is recopaiees when the custormer obtzins control of the goods, The customer ootairs contrel of goods at the different point In time bazed on the delivery
erms, dccerdingly, satisfies its perfermance obligation at t1e tme of dispatch of goods from the factory/stoccvard/storage area/port as the case may 2o and
accordingly revenJe is recognised Revenue from the sale of geods i measured at the fair value of the considerstion recaivec or moeiwable, net of retums and
allowsanceas, trade discounts and wolurne rebales.

Tre determinaton of lransaction prics, ts allocaticn 1o premisad goods and allecation of ciscount o- vasiable compersaton [if any) is dena based o0 the cortract
with the custamers,

Tae incremantal costs that the incurs to ohtain 8 contract with a russomer that it wedld oot have incursed IF the contract Fad net been obtaines are recognised as an
asset if ts recovery is expected and ts amortisasion pericd is more thar one year, all cther such costs 3z recogrises &5 an cxperse instaternerl of profit and less, The
incrzmental cost recopnises as an asal is amertises ovar the perica t when such costis expectad to be recovered, Amount so recoverad is recognises as revenue in
statement ol preft and oss,

Export incantives
Rewende from axaort incertivas are accounted for on export o goads i7 the satitlercerts car be estineted with reasonsble assurance and conditions precedant 10
claim are U filled.

Die design and preparaticn charpes
Reernues froqn die design and preparation charges are secognized as per ©1e terms of the contract as and when 7o significant risks and rewards of owrerskip of dies
ara trarsfered o the buvers,

Interest income

Far &l debt instrements measasrs gither a1 armortised cost or at fair vave theough otrer camarenensve income, intwres: income s recorced waing the effective
irterest sate [FIR), FIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated fiture cash receipss ower the expested (e of the financial rstrameant or a shorter percd, whers
appropriate, to the gress carrving amount of the francizl asset or to the amortised cost of a linancial lzbilite, waea calcalating the effective irterest rats, the
Conpany estimates the expected cash flows by considerrg all the contractual Terms ol the financal instrument (for examzle, prepaymert, extension, caliand sirmilar
opions| but dogs rot consider the exprotes credit losses. Inteestinceme 5 inclades Inether incoma o the staterment of zrofit and loss.

Dividands

Diwiderd income is recegnsad whan the Compzry's ©ight to receiva the pavment is established, which is generally wiren shareholders approvs the cridand

2.7 Govemment granti

Gowernment Frarts a°e TECOEMISES wogre thare is reaserable assurance that the grant will b2 received and all sttached condtions wil be camplied with, When the
Frant of suzscy selates to severue, i s secognized as income on @ systerratic Zasis 0 the statemert of proft and oss over the periods recessary to rratch them with
T relates cosls, weich They are inmendad to COMPensats.

Where the grant re atss mo an asset, it is recognized as celerred income and is a located to statermznt of profit ard loss over the peross and in the proporizns in
which depreciation o those sssets s chiged.

2.B) Property, Plant & Equiprrent

Tangible Assats

Deareciation or tangible assets s provides on the straght-line methes at the -ates and manner prescrbad cnder Schaduce Il of the Comparies Acl, 2013 eacest in The
case of Fant and Mach rery whars the depreciation tas been provided o the basis of tre useful lives of the sssets estimated by the managemert based on interna
assessment and independeat lechnical evaluation carried out by external Charsered Erginee- at the time of adestion of Companies Sct, 3013, Depreciaticn for the
assets purchased ,-".‘-L'Fc during the year is proportionately -:'lar,r;ed ;

Tre sz mated useful lives are as menlioned qelowe

Type of fuset bethaod Useful Lives
Factory Building Straight Line A0 Years
Furniture & Fittings Straight Line 10 Yaars
Flant and Macainery Straight Line 10 - 20 Years
Offion Equiprment Straight Line 5 ¥ears
Electrical Installment Stralght Line 10 Years
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Carm puters Straight Line -5 Years
Wehichas Straight Line 210 Years

Anizam of praoetty, plart ang equipmert ard ary significant part infialy recegaised S derecegnsed upon disposal o waen no future economic cenefits are
grprsted Srom its use or disposal, Ay gain o s anising an derecognition of tne asset Jcalculated as the differance petween the net disposal proceeds and the
carpying arnouat of tre asset) is included ir the staterment of profit ane loss account when the asset is derecognised,

Tae residual values, vseful ves and metiods of dezreciation of sropersy, lart and equizment are reviewed ot each Trancial year end ard adjusted prospectivesy, if
aapropriste.

Prosety, plant and equinment are statzd at cost of acouisition or constraction net of sccumulated deprecaton and impatrment less [ifany). internally maaufactored
property, plant and 2guipment are capizalized at cost, inclusing non-ered itasle, GAT wherever asplicable. All significant costs relating te the acqustion and installation
of groperty, plant ang eguizment are cagitalised, Suck cost includes the cost of replacieg part of the pregety, plant and egquviprmert and borrowing costs for long-term
camstructan projects f the recogrition criteria ara met. Wher sgnfeant parts of plant and ecuipment are requiced 1o be replaced at intereals, the Compaey
depreciates therr separately bases on ther specific useful lves. Lkewise, when & major nspestion is performed, its cost is recogrised in e careying amount of the
plant arc equizment &z a replacemsnt if the recogniton criteria are satisfied &1l cther repaic and mainlesance costs are recogrises In statemert of proft ard osz as
incurrad. The presert value of the exgectes cost for the decomrmissioning of an assel after it gie is included In the cost of The respective asset if the macopn tion
criteria fosa provision are mel. Refes o aote regarding sgaficant account g judgrments, 2somates a1d assumptiors ano provisions for Sutther irformation

subseguent costs are Included i tha asset's casrying emount or reccanised as a separate asset, as approstiate, only when itis probable at future economic benegfs
associated with the itern will flow to the Company ard the cost of the e can be measurad eliably. The carngng amodant of the replaced part is dereccanised.

2.8] Intanglble Assets
Recocgnition and initial measurement
Furchased Intangin & assets are statec at cost less accumilates amertisation and mparment, £ any.

Internaly geveloped irtangible assets
Expendizure on sne resgarch phiase of projects i@ recognised &5 a1 edpensa as |acurred.

Costs 1hatare directly attrisctable to a project’s deva coment phase are recognises &5 intangible assats, provider the Company can demonstrate the follow rg:

« the techaica feasi lity of cornplenng the intangic/e asset so nat  will B2 avaiab'e for g

= its intention 2o corplate e irtarpible et and use or sa'lit

= jits ability to yze or sell te intangible asset

® hoew sno rhanginle assel wil genarate arobable fuiure ecanomic benefits

= ke availability of adequate techaical, financial and cther resources to complate the devalopment a1a to use or soll the intangite assel,

= iz5 ab ity to measure reliably the sxperditure attributable o the ntangizle sssat during its doveiopment codls not meetng these citena for capta sabon zre
Edpensed 85 INCUMTET.

Diracthy attrbutable costs clude employes ¢

onsls.

nayrred on develosmant of prototypes aong with an aporoprate gortion of relevant overneads and borrowing

2.10] Foreign Currency Transactions

Functional and presentation currency
The financial staterrerts are presented (4 Ind a1 Kugse (WE) and are rounded to two deciral places of millions, which salee the funclicaal ang presentation currency
of T1e Compary.

Transactions and balances

Fereign cLrrency Trarsactons are rece-ded in the functonzl corrency, by aoplyirg to ©1z eschangz rate setween the furctional curreney and the: foreign currency at
the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary items are converted to furctional currercy using the closing rate. Non-monataryg items deaomrated in a foreign currency which are
cermied at historica cost are reported using the exchange mte ol the date of the transactons,

Exchange difforences arising on monstary ilemms on settement, or restatament as at reporting date, st rates differant from those at which they were initiacly recosdesd,
are racognized in the statemant of prafit and loss in the year in wnich they anise.
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201} Employes Benefits

i} Snortterm employes benefits

All pmployers benefts that are sxpectes 1o be settles wholy within twelve months after the end of the pericd in which the emaloyees render the related service, are
classified a5 short tern employes 2eqefts, which include salasies, wages. shartt term compersated absences and performance itcentves ane are measured at the
arnounts exsected 3o be pald wasa the liahilties are settles, The liahi'ities are presented as corrent employes benefit celigations in the balance sheet. These a~e
recopnised as expenses in the pericd inwhich the ermployee -eoders The ralated servics

(ii] Post-ermplayment benefits

Ceatribuzons towards Superarnugtion Furd, Persion Fund and gove-nmert admiristered Proveent Fund ase Treatad as defined contrbutor schames 17 respect of
contributiors made o government asministered Providenl Furd, the Comaany has ro furses obligators pevond s marthly contributions. Such conwribetions are
recogniser ws pxpense ‘nthe peciod in which the emaoves renders selated service.

The cost of gefined benefit such as is datermined using T2 projected uait credic method, with actuarial valustion being cartied out at esch talarce sheat date.
Actuacial galng anc lesses 0 respect of the same are charged to the ODe- Comarehensive Incorme (001,

i) Other lerg-term bensafits

All e ployee henefits ather than sost-emaloyment benefiss and termination berelits, which do st fall due wheily within twelve months after the end of the pericd in
which the empioyeas render the relates serdice, includiag long term compensated assences, service aweards, are determined zased on actuarial va vatcn carried out
at wach baanoe sheet dale, FsUmated liability o account of long 12em employes benefits = discoantsd o the prasent value vsing o yield on government bonds as
tire discounting rate fos tre tern of eoligations a5 o1 the date of 12 ba'ance sheet. Actuatial g3 rs and losses in respect of the sarne are cha-ged to tha statement o
crofit and oss

[r] Terminaticn berefits

Ternination benefis are payable when emaoloyment & terminated by the Cormpany before the normal retirement date, or when an emplogee sccepls s unbiang
retiverr et in exchange of these banafits. The Company recognises termination benefits st the earlier of the fol lowing dates:

|a) when te Company can no longer witharaw the offer of those berefits; or

b} when the entty reccanises costs for & restrectur g that is wothin the scope of Ind A% 37 and ireolves the payrrert of termination berefts. The termination
benefits are measures bases on tte rumber of sma oyess expectes to accept the offer in case of woluntary setirement schema.

1.1%) Leases

[i: Determining whether a contract cortains leass

At ingeption of a contract, the Comaany detasm res whether the cantract =, or conzains, 8 lesse. The contract iz, o7 contairs, a ‘wase e contrcl conveys The right
to control the wse of an identified asset or azsets for a ceriod of tirre 0 excharaa far consideration, even ' that rigat is net explictly specified inoa contract

At Inceation or on reassessmant of a contract that cortains lease comperent and one or more additional lease o non-ease compenents, the Company separates
pavments and oiher corsiceration required by the contract into sose for eack ease corrponent an the basis of thelr selatve stand-alene grice and those for non
Iease comporents on the basis of thetr elative age-egate stand-alone price. if the Company concludes that iz is mpracticable to separate the payments seCabily, ther
righl-nf-use asset and Lease lag ity are recognised at an @moart equa to the present value of future Ease pavmmerts; submequently the Cability i reduces as
payments ase made and anomouted Snance cost on the lizbilite 15 recognised using the Compary's ircremertsl sorrowing rale, Tre previels determinztion pursuant
tolad A% 2F and s ‘appand @ C of whethar a contract = 2 ‘gase has been mairtained fo- exisling contracls.
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(ii] Company &6 a leces

At inception, the Company assesses whether & contract is or containg & legse. This assessment involes the ceercise of judgement aboul whether 0 gepends onoan
idantified asses, whether the Company nhsaing sebstantislly all the eooramic beredits from the use of that gee, and whether the Com pary has the ngat to direct the
wse of thal assel.

The Company has electer to separate lease and ron-lease com ponents of contracts, wheraver possible,

The Company recognizes & ripht-of-use (RCL) asset and a lzase fdazility st the trarsition datey lease commenaement disbe, The dght-ol-use aaeet is initially meagured
zased on the preseat walue of futuee lease payments, plus initial direct costs, and cost te dismantle ans remoes the undeslying aszat or to resore the und eriying ascet
ar The site an which 0T is located, ana l2ase payments reade at or before the cormmencemant date, less any incentves received. The rnight-of-use 2zt is depraciated
el the shorer of the lease tarm or the useful life of the underlving asset. Tne nght-cfuse aszat s subject e testrg for impairmert i there is 5 indicator fior
impairrent.

At e commencement date, Company measures the lesse Dazility ab the present salue of the future Ease paymeants thal are not yet paid at that date giscountes
using interest mle implict in the e ar, 00 ol ate cannet be readily determined, the Company's incremertal borrowing rate. Generally, e Company’s uses ts
incramental horrewiag rate as the discouat rate, The leaze labilizy s meascred at amortises cost Laing the e¥ectve inteest matiod. Itis remeasured whes there is a
change In future lease payments ansing from a change nar index or rate, if there is a change in the Comzany's estimste of the amount expected to be payable unager
a residual value guarartes, or f the Company changes its assessment of whethes it will exercise 8 purchase, extension or fermisation eplics. Waen the lease Hazilivg is
rerreasuted nothis way, a corresponding adjustrment is made to the carsying armoas of The rigat-ol-use agaen, o0 s recorded in 2rofit o less 1F the carmying amount of
Ihe right-ol-use asset has seen reduced 10 2ero. Cantingent rents payments ara recogn2ad as an experse (0 the ocenod in which they arg incasred. Lezse pavrments
generaly incude fimed payments ane vanab'e payrrerts that decend on an index jsuch g= an nflation indexl. Wher the lesss contains an axtens’on or purchaso
opzaon thatthe Company considets reasonab v certain to be exarcised, the cost of the optior isinc L oer in the lease payments

The Company presents rightof ese assots that do rot mees the definition of ineestmest groperty and lease liabilities in secarately o other assetsfliabilices inthe
halaroe shee:

The Company Fas electen nat to secognize ront-of-use assets and lizbilities far (eases where the totzl lease term is less than or egual te 12 months, or for leases of
lowe wal e assets, The payrmernts for such leases are recopnzad in the Statemert of Brofit and Loss or @ straight-ling basis over the lease term

(i} Company s & lessor

Lesses i whizh the Cormpary dees net transfen suszatancially all the risks and rewasss incoenta to cwaarstip of ar underying 2zsets are classifzd as operat ng =ases,
Rantal income fram aaeqat g lease is recognised cn a stragat-line basis owver tha t2rm of the relevant lease unless the payments are structured o increase in ling with
e genara inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected rflationary cost incraase. Initial d rect costs incarrad in negotiating and armanging an operatng lease are
added to the carrying amouns of the lzased asset ard recognised nver the lzase term on the same sasis as cectal income. Corlingenl rents are recognised as revenusa
in the perind in whick they are carmed.

Lesianes sure classified as finance eases when substartially all of the rcks and sgwards incoental o ownersnip of underying asset is transferrad from the Cormpary to
e lesses. amodants dus from essees under firance legses are recorded &3 receivables at the Company’s net inveszment in the leases, Financa lease income is
allzcazed to account ra peniods 50 83 toreflact & constart parindic rate of return cn the net rvestment ousstand ing in respect of the lease,

2.13} Taxation
&) Current Tax

The tax currently pevsble is based or maxable prafit for the year, Taxable prott diffes frem ‘profit betore L as reporiad in the statement af arofit ane less secadsa
nd jrerms of insome or experse tat are taxasle o deductible in other years and items that are never fasable or deductible. The Company's current tax & caloulated
usifg L rates as per incoree Tax Act, 1351 that have heen enacted or substantively enacted oy the and of the reporting period.

ki) Deterred Tax

Deferred rcome taw is proviesd e full, using the labil ity rmethod, or temoorary dfferences ansing betwaen the we bases of assets and liazilities and theic carrging
gmounts i the financial stazements. Deferred tax assets sre recoptizad ang carries “orward only if it is probabie that 5
gaainst which such defered tax assets can be realised, Deferred fax sssets and Fabililies are nesscred at the tax rales that tave oeen anacted or substantvely
eriacted as on the balarce skeet dale, Deleroed b assets and deferrad tax lalities are offser when thare is a legally enforceable night to set off assets against
liabilities regresenting cdrrert tad, Current and defersed tas Is recognsad inoprofit and (o3, escept 1o the extent that t relates two items recopnsed in other
cornprehensive incame. In this case, te tax s also recognised 0 other corm prehansive income.

Figrat future Taxable income will e availabla

Ire carrying amcant of deferrad tax assets Is reviewsd at the end of 2ach reporting period and reduced to the extant thet it is no langer probable thit selficien:
taxazle profits will be svailzble to allow all or gart of T1e asset to be recoverag,
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2.14) Employee Stock aplions

The company has accounted for the share based payment for employess i respeat of LIL ES0P - based on the IND A5 102 ° Share-bazac payments” ard Guidancs
Mota on “Accourting for Emplovess Share Based Payment™ issues by 1DAL | "Guidance Mote®). The Comnpary follows the Fair Market Velue Methes (calcuated or tre
bas's of Rack-Acheles metkod] o ascount Tar cormpensation edpenses arsing from ssuance of stock options to the employers and has recognioed the services
receives in an equity-settled employee snase-basad payment olan as an experse wied it recoives the services, with o coreeszondicg credit to Stock Opticas
Dutstarding Account § other agurty, depends on terms and cond tion. Furtier, emplovees compensation cosl recognized 2arlier on grart of aptons is reveszed in the
vear whan the Options are sumendered by the emplover

2.15) Borrowings & Bosrawng Costs

Borrowings sre tecoptisad intislly at fair walue, net of transaction costs incurred. Rorrow e gs are subsequently stated at amortised cost. Any difference beteeen the
aroceeds [net of trarsacton costs) and the redempTion vilue & recegnced 0 the stazement of profit and loss acoourt over tne poriod of the borrowings using the
efective inlerest sate reethod, Borrewirgs are classfies as current liabilties vnless t12 Comzany has an unconsitional right te deler settlernent of the liaail ty for at
want 12 marths after the reperting date.

Borrowing costs directly attrizetasie 1o the acquisition, constraction of production of gualifyirg azses, whicn are assets that necessar b teke a substantizl period of
tire to got ready fo- thelr intended use or sale, are addad to the cost of those assats, until such time as the assets are sehstartially ceady for theis rtendad use or
sale

Intesest income sarned or the temporary investmant of specfic berrowings, perding their sxperditure an qualifyicg assets, s deductze from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitzlisation.

&l athers borrowing costs are recognised - staterrert of profit and loss v the perind rowhich they areincerred.
2,16} Impairment of Assets
Maon-financlal assets

Imtarpible assets and property, plant and equipment e evaloated for recoverablliny wherever events or changes © circomstances indicate thal their carrging
s ounts may ot be recoverasle. For Cre purpose of impainmert testing, the recoverable armount [ie, the higher of the fair valae ess cost 1o sell and the value-in-use|
i determired on an ind vidual asset basis unlass the asset cdoes not aenerate cash flows that are largely indezendent of those from other assez=. In sech cases, the
recoverabla amount = determ red for the CEU 1o which the asset belongs,

f such assets are conzderea to be impatred, the impairmant o be recognized o the stazerment of proftand loss is messured by the amount by senich the cairying
witlue nf the assets exceads the estimated recoverab e amount of the asset. An impairment loss is reversed in the statement of prefit and loss f there bas been &
change in & estimatas uses to ceterming £12 recoverable amount. The carrying amount of the asse: 5 increased to it revised racoverabla emount, orovided that
thls amodnt dess not excesd T1E CRMING amount that weals nave been determined (et of aty accumulatad amorization o d=greciation) had no impairment Inss
28en recognized for the asset in prios yoars

Financial assets
Ine cornpery recoanizes loss zllowarces using the expestes crodit loss (FCL) mosel for the financal assets woich are not far valued torcagh proft or loss,

Loms allowanae for srade rece vibles with no significant firascing corr ponant is rmeasuced at e smaourt equal ta lifetirme FCL,

2.17) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents incluses casn and chegues in hanad, carrent accounts ard fixed deposiz accounts with barks with original matarites of tnree rmorths or less
that are readily convartible ta gnown arnouats of cash and which are subject to an insgnificart rsiool changes i value,

2.18) Cask Flow Staternent

Cash flows sre reportes wsing the indirect method, woeresy @ proft before tax is aojusted for the effects of rransacticns of ron-cash natare and any deferrals or
aceruals of pash o Tulure cash sece pts or payrnents, 11e cash fows from operatng, financina and investing activities of the Company are segregated.
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2.19] Provisions and Contingencies
Provisions are recogrised when e Company has a pressTt legal or constructve obligation s a resut of past events, far which 4 s prosable t1at an cutflow of
resources embodying econem < benefits wit' be requited to settle tre obligation ans a relizble estimatz of the arount can be made

Prowisions are measurad st t7e prosen: salue of maragemant's best sstimate of the expenditure required to settle the zreseat cizligation at the end of the ~eportng
petind, The discount rate te determing the present value s 2 pre-tax rate that reflects current markel assessrerts of the time value of meney ara the risks spectic ta
thee linhility, The increase in the provision cue to the passsge of time is rocognised as alereaT expercs.

Contngent liabl ties are disclosed when there & @ possible obl gation nisiag from 2ast avants, the exstance of which will be confrmed only by the coourmence or nen
aceurrence of one or more unsertain filure evaats not whe' by witnin the control of the company o & present obligation that arises fromn past events whare s either
rot probahle tnat an outhow of sesoarces will o2 required o settle or a reliable estirmate of the areount cannot be made.

2,201 Dervative financial instraments and hegge accounting

Cash Flow Hedge:

The Compary holds dervative finaroial i-strurments such as farelgn exchangs forwsrd and opticn cantracts o mitigete the risk of changzs in exchanpa rates on
FACE'RN SUTET DY ERpOSUnes

The effactive portion of cranges e fair value of the hedging nstrumeants is recognized In other comprehansve income and accamulsted ic the cash fow hedging
-gzarve. Such amounts are reclassfies in ta the statemant of peafit of loss when thz related hedge iterrs sffect profil or leas, &ay iseffective portor of cranges inthe
fair value of the cerivative orif the hedging instrament no longer meets the crteris for bedge aocounting, is recognized Immadiately in the statemant of preft and
[ie333

Any Cerivaswe that is rither rot designated a hedge, or 15 sc cezgnated but is inetfective s per Ins 85 109, & categerized as a financial irstrurments at fair vaiee
threrugh prallor loss,

1.21) Bredend to equity holders of the Company

The Company recngrises o liabil ty 5o make cash or non-cash dstributions to 2quity aoisers of the Conpany when the dstribation is authorised and the dstibuticon s
2.12] Segrient reporting

CpErating SERTIEAT: are reportes ina manner consistent with Tng interna’ reparting provides ta the chief coerating cecision-naker.

233} Earnings Per Share

Earning per stase is caloulated by civiging T12 proft attr cutable o owness of the comzany by the weighted average rurnber of equity shares ousstanding during the

liraricial vesr,

For the purpnse of calculating ¢luted easnings pe- share, the net profit or loss Tor the e attriatalie oo equity sharenolders and the weighted average tumoes of
shares outstarding daring the year ate adjusted for the eHects of all dilutive potential ecuiby shares,
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Notes Q Gripwel Fasteners Private Limited

te the Flrancial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025 e
TIRTS 0 Bl 1
Particulars Az at i - Asat
3ist March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
A, INVESTMENTS =i s |
Mon-current

In Equity shares of Dther companies
Ungueted, Tully paid up

Arrplus Salae Shakti Prvale Limiied 608,000 | presous year M Eauity Shares of 10 each £0E

Tetal investrments Non-currant _ ﬂ

Aggregate amnount of Unguated Investmants G108 e




Notes Q Gripwel Fasteners Private Limited

to the Finangial Statements for the year ended 31st Marnch, 2025 e

LIME T Adillieon |
A5 8t Asat
3ist March, 2025 A1st March, 2024

Particulars

5. OTHER FIMAMCIAL ASSETS

Mor-current - SRR
Securily deposits a 9.21 644
Depogity with orgingl maturty r:-.f .rr;nre than twelwe months .07 Q.06
{!NA in Million )
As at Asal
Particulars

313t March,2035  3istMarch, 2024

E. OTHER ASSETS
Mon-current (Unsecured, considered good)

Capital Advances

) .40 P ERR
Totl - TN [T aar

Current [Unsecured, considered goad)

Advence To Supplicrs i - . 245 183
Balance with Tax duthoritics s | 103 103
Prepaid Expenses e 6.28 5.08
Advance Faymerts, Other Recoverable In Cash Or 'n €ind-Or For

Walue To Be Received 5.62 5.97

Tota T T I €Y T

£.1) Mo advances are due from directors or other officers of the Company, firms in which @ director |s a partner or private companies inwhich director is &
dirschor or 2 member ether severally or ainthy with any other person.




Motes Gripwel Fasteners Private Limited
to the Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2025

LT.J:'Q‘;H.

HMA in BAllicn |

Particulars ot oy
31st March, 2025 335t March, 2024

7. INVENTORIES =
Raw Materizls (Including rzterials In Tr.arsrtll : . 67.84 B8
Wrk-In-Frogress i 107.47 Iia:51
Finished Goads [Inclucing Goods Al Port] R 4737
Traded goods o 30,78 4243
Stores And Soares Includ e Mateniats In Transizh = = 2048 25,53,
scrap 03 0.5

Tota _ wmen

JIME i Rlon )
As at i As &t
315t March, 2025 31st March, 2024

Farticulars

B. INVESTMENTS

Current ~

Enauoter: = -

tandatorily measured and carried at FVTFL . \
Investrrent r Mutial Funds 28.65 6132

Tota_ T S e )

Aparzgate amount of unquatsd investmerts - &t cost Bs, 2858 mollions (Pravious year Bs. 81.0% m llons)

M i B illiae |

i Mg at Az at
PACIEUALS 41st March,2025 31st March,2024

4. TRADE RECENVABLES
Current {Unsecured, considered good)
Tracte rec

Tota — me]

4.1} Generzlly payment against sale of gooss become due as per pivmeant 1eims, and fiked traqsaction prce as 28r CONTTA0TE With Customers

dles |Refes Mone 37- Aelated aarties disclesure) 23768 2853

As at 31at March, 2025 (IMRin Killor )

Particulars Mot Dug S srnnie 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
rmont WEEMS

9.2 Trade Receivablas ageing schedu'e
Datstanding for follawing cariods from
due date of payrments

i) Urdispotes Trade receivatiles— 1a781  43E3 020 103

corsicdered good . FEIGE
(i) Untdis zuted Trade receivables - - =

crad 1 Impaiced

{lii] Dispuzed 1race receivables -

cradt impaies y -
Total 18791 13.53 0.20 1.03 = - 23168




Motes Q ETlpWEt Fastenars Private Limited
o the Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2025

A ar 31at March, 2024

URELETE

IR i Bdillica |
Particulars Mot Duea Lisethans SRl 1-2 years -3 years Miore than 3 years. Total
manth WEBMS
2.3 Trade Receivables agelng schedule n
{Juz:an;:lmg'far fol owing periods from
cue date of payments .
i} Undisputed Trade recenables - 15123 112.29 1s8 z . -
considerad gocd _ 2 2 265,17
(il Undisputed Trade receivables — - z
credit impaired )
it} Dispuigd--‘rade recevables — - = 5 - . =
credit impaired . =
Totl 15133 112,39 165 - - 2 26517
JIWE in A illian |
A5 at Asat

ERKH Falae 315t March, 2025 31st March, 2024
10, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - =35 _'
Cask In Hand . .30
Balances with tanks: [izzant
In cash crecit and cureent accouts ] 148 .07
In EEFL accounts B 0.07 2059
Rermiltances in fransit - 374

Total RS R

(R in R ilion |
Ad at Az at
Farticalns 314t March, 2005 | 31st March,2034
11. LDANS =
Current [Unsecured, considered goad) =
Logrs To Emalovees 037 o34




MNotes
o B Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2025

Gripwel Fasteners Private Limited

LRSI AR Wilhar |

Farticulars

| s at s Bt

Break wp of financial assets carried at amaortises oost

315t March, 2025 31st March, 2024

Other firancial assets Rafer N_rfl_r._fa_':l

Trade recemables [Refer Mote 3]

Casn and cash equivalents [Refer Note 10]

Loars [Reter Mate 11]

5,74 BED

23268 76517

7165 2460
03y

Tota jEsEEe ST
JIMA in B llion )
—— Az at A ot
articulars st March, 2025 31t March, 2024
Break up of financial assets carned at fair value through G0 i
Drr':.-ill'n'_l.-. instruments = = = 380
ot o s R
(IHR in Killicn |
4 A at A5 at
Farticulars 31stMarch,2025  3dst March, 2024
Break up of financial assets carried at fair value througn FYTPL . |
28,65 BY3%

Invastrnents [Refar NEI:' E

Tatal




Motes
to the Financial tatements for the year ended 315t bMarch, 2025

Gripwel Fasteners Private Limited

i TIRT 1 B Tion 1
— fs at Asat
articular Alar March, 2025 31sr March, 2024
2. SHAR? _CJ'A.PI'I.'".L =
AUTEORISED N X
B0,00,000 [previous vear : &0.00,000) equity shares of £20 each B 50.00 G000
1SSLED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID.LP z I BT
57,529,812 (previcus year : 57,5884 2) equity shares of l"lﬂ:.'_{l_f:_l'! Ful;rl-c-lrl [T EF.a0 576D
Total I
12.2 Reconciliatian of equity shares outstanding at the beginring and 2t the end of the reporting year:
MR in Killion }
Particulars A5 at 31st March, 2025 As atb 315t March, 2024
Mo, of Shares Arnaunt Ho, of Shares Amount
At the beginning of the vear 57.59.842 5760 57,509,842 5760
t the end of the year 57,50,842_ B0l S750842 | -

12.2 Terms/ rights attacked to ecuity shares

The Compary 7as erly one class of equily shares having sae walue of 1 10 ger share. Eacn ho cer of equity shares = anttled to one wote per share,
Ther snarehie decs of equity shased of e Company are entitled to recene dwidends as and when declared oy the Compary and erejoy progoetionate
voling rights in case amy resoluzon & put to vote. In the evens of iguidaton of the Comaarry, the holzers of equity shares will be entitles o recelve
remalning assets of the Company, after Jistrizution of all preferantia’ amaunt, if any. The cistizetion @l ze 0 gropotion to the numbar of equ ity

shargs neld by the shareholders,

123 [retzils af shares held by the Holding company

Az at 3lst March 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Name of the Shareholder Number & "“"i'r::'" e Humber % halding in the class
Unigarts Ind.a Limited. 5750842 100.00 T 10000
|knlding Cormpany| Taigar)
lInc uces One Share fels in trust G
by wir. Gurdeep Soni)
12.4 [etails of shareholders holding more thar 5% shares in the compary
Asat 31t March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Mame of the Shareholdaer Numzer % h”':g'" iy Nurnber % holding in the tlase
Uniparts India Limized 575042 0000 575942 o000
|Holdirg Cormpany) -
(Includes Ore Share beld in trust
by W Gurdeso Soni) i o
1.5 Ditails of equity shares held by promaoters
A5 at 31st March, 2025 A5 at 31sc March, 2024
MName of the Shareholder Mumber - huli’:::‘mt‘he MNumber % helding in the class
U parts |ngis Limited 57,59, 802 100,00 57,59,847 100.00

[Hoding Comea v
(leludes Cre Share held in trust

by Wir Gurdeep Sani)




Motes Gripwel Fasteners Private Limited
ta the Flnanciel Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

i N EN SN
Parlicular I it s
31st March, 2025 315t March, 2024
13, OTHER EQUITY
CASH FLOW HEDGE RESERVE
& per last 3alance Shest B 2E3 13.56)
Add: Arising during Uhe year [5.41] 535
GEMERAL RESERVE * | : peses T IR L s
Az per last Balance Sheet 1205 12.05
SURPLUS/[DEFICIT] IN THE STATEMENT OF SROFIT AND LOSS _
A5 per lesh Balance Sheet : . i 482,78 T71.32
Add: Profit for the year y : 18120 21059
add: ESOP Grented during the year by holding company 126 013
Add: Other Comprehensive income;
Fe-meazuramert of defined benefit obligatiors inet of tax) ; 10.55) 1.85
] 664,65 98389
Less: Appropriations
Fayrment of dividend on equity shares
Total )
13 (a)
Distribution made and proposed to be made {IMR im Million |
Particular At fie
31st March 2025 _ 315t March, 2024
Cash dividends on equity shares declared and paid:
Interim cash dividend o
For the vear ended on March 21, 2024 Rz, Mil par share (Warch 31, 2023 : Rs. 15,00 per share) Era | o] 103,68
For the vear ended an March 31, 2025 Rz, 46.00 per share |March 31, 2024 : ¥ £2.00 per share) E 2E4.55 39743

Total Dividend

* Aptained earrings and Ceneral Aeserve are to be ulilised for General parpose,




MNotes Gripwel Fasteners Private Limited
to the Financial Statemerts for [he year ended 32st March, 2025

LIKIFGETE

[INE bn Wlian |

asat Az at
31st March, 2025  31st March, 2024

Particulars

14, BORADWINGS
Current borrowings

Werking capital loans fram banks repayable en demand

Foreign currency loans

Preshipment packing credit (secured| [Refer rote 14,1] 111.8F &
Aupee loans -
Preskipment packing credit (secured} 2 90,31

Tota [ T

14,1 Werking capital loans
CGripwel “astensrs Privete Limited - Above loan is secured sgeinst First pari pessu charge on all existing and future stocks and beak debt.

Rate of Interest
* Interest @ 5.57H ~ 5.97% p.a.

T2 7 The monthly returmsfstabements of current assets fited by the Company with benks or financizl instizutions in relation to secured borrowings wherever
zpplicable, are in agrezment with the books of accounts and there sre no material differences reguired to be reported in respect of all the years referred abowe,

14.3 The quarterly returnsfstatements of current zssets filed by the Company with banks ar financizl institutions in relation to secured borrowings wherever
zpolicable, are in agreement with the books of accounts ard there are ro material differences regured (o be repeied in respect of all the years referred above.

II%R i Millicn)
As 3t T hsE
31st March, 2025 _31st March 2024

@artlculars

15. LEASE LIABILITIES
Man-current |
Lease labulities 1051 6.35

Tota ' o TSRS [ TR
Current

Lease lebilitics

: 5.37 1.87
Tota e e R

[IMA b ilion]
A5 at Az at
315t March, 2025 31st March, 2024

Particulars

16. PROVISIONS

Nan-current

Prowisinn far grgT-\,-I‘q:-. - 33.22 3182
Provision far leave entitlerment 281 255
Total - -

Current B q
Provisior for gratuity 938 8,58
Provisior for leave entitlement 1.05 1.02°

(WA in Million|
A5 at L At
31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Particulars

17. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS [NET)

Deferred Tax Assers ) 1572 1309

10.39 1261




Motes Gripwel Fasteners Private Limited
to the Financial Statements for the year erded 3151 March, 2025

[T AL

URE in Wllian

Recognised in

. As at Recognised in Gther Dthers Including i
Particulars 31st March Profit and Loss Comprahensive E.Hha S 325k March 2025
2024 account difference
neome
Finanacial year 2024-25
Deferred tax assels - i
txpenses deductible in future yezrs e : 1107 0.50 020 = 11.72
Lease Liabilities 107 197 - 4.00
13,03 222 0.0 - 1572
Deferred tax liabilities -
Properly, Plantand Cguipment ane Intangible Assets 1262 10.36) - .27
Feir valuetior of Cash Flow Hedges ) 0.9€ 10.00) 1.82| - 1036
Fair valugtion of Investment ] _ Dbo3 ya.0d) [0.021)
| = 1261 [0.40) (1.82) . 10,29
Total 10,48 [2.82) (2.03) . 15.32)
11%R im Millien)
. Recognised in )
A at Recognised in Other Others including Asat
Particulars 31st March Profit and Loss Eonimrehansig &.ICha nge 315t March 2024
2023 #ecount difference
Income
Finanacial year 2023-24
I;‘l-el.‘erfed tan assets -
Expenses deductibrle m Tuture years 11.13 0,57 0.6 . 1102
Leaze Liabilities 333 137 ' - 20
14 46 10.76] 062 = 13.09
Deferred e :IahuiiT-lgs.. . o o )
“Property, Plant end Equipmert and Intangible Assels 13.39 1137 ' 11.62
Fzir veluztion of Cash Slow <edges o 215 - C.a6
11,200 -
Fair vzluatian of Investrmant 003 (.03
12.1% 11,74 2.15 v 1261
Tatal [2.27) 10.98) 297 - (0.8
VMR in Rillan )
. As at As at
o A, 31st March,2025  _ 31st March, 2024
18, OTHER LIABILITIES
Current :
Trade deposits and sdvences [Aefer Hole 18,1] i 5,29 027
Provision for expenses ] 044 771
Employee bensfics payeble ' 0.56 11.85
Etatutary dues payzhble 460 480

28.1 Recopnised as revenue upon satisfactan of performance abligation inimmediate next reportirg period.

(MR in Bilfion)

Partlcular e it
artlculars 315t March, 2025 31st March, 2024

19, TRADE PAYARLES DUE TO

Micro enterprises and small enterprises ; 2410 15,93

Other than micro entercorises and small enterorises
Total




MNotes

e the Financial Statermnents for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Gripwel Fasteners Private Limited

A5 at 31st March, 2025

KIRAETS

[IMA I Baltllon)

Particulars

Net Due

less 1 years

1-2 years

2-3 years

Mare than 3 yvears Tatal

Trede Fayvable ageing schedule

(i} Micro enterprises acd small enlerprises

fii} Other than micro t'rlicrpriscs'ﬁr'ld'il'lcll
erlerprises

24,10
58,51

23.03

(i) ";‘isp uted dues- micro enterprises
and small enterprizes

(iv) Disputed dues alker Lhan micro
anterprises
and small enterorises

1.94

005

- 74,10
0.00 B353

Total

B2.60

23.03

194

0.05

.00 107 62

As at 31st March, 2024

[IME I Rallien)

Farticulars

Not Due

less 1 years

1-2 years

2-3 years

Mare than 3 years Total

Trade Pavable ageing schedule

(il Microenterprises and small erterprises

{irp Other than micro enterprises end small
erlerprises

15.91

10321

2591

C.04

i) Disputed dus- micra enterprises
and small enterprises

{iv) Disputed dues- other then micro
enterprises
and small enberprises

000 1in.n4

Total

119.12

6.79

0.04

0.0 125.95

Areak up of financial liabilities carried at amortized cost

{ME in Rillion)

Sarticuiars

As at hs at
31st March,2025 31st March, 2024

Break up of financial lablitles carned at amortized cost

Current borrowings [Refer Note 14]

Leaze Labilities [Refer Mote 15]

Trade payebles |[Refer Nole 19]

Tatal

90.21

1588 822

12595

(1R i itillien)

Particulars

Asat Asat

areak up of financzl lizbility carned at fair value through OCI

Dermvative instruments
Tatal

| 33st March, 2025 313t March, 2024

343



Motes Gripwel Fasteners Private Limited
to the financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025
e
UMAin Millian )
e Year ended Year ended
Atheu 315t March,2025 3151 March, 2074
20 REWEMUIE FROM OPEAATIONS
Szle of products e
Finished goads iNet of returns, rebizte et} 1,326.24 1,435.61
Traded goods 457.00 47147
Scrap 2443 35.38
Total ==
1R fn Million ]
— Year ended ¥ear endad
i 315t March, 2025 315t March, 2024
21 OTHER INCOME i sk
Interesglr;:nr_ne i
Inteegst 1,95 358
Met gain on investments carsed at fair value through profit and loss 4.50 T.25
Clhrs
Met gain on feir valuation of financial instruments (FYTRL 10,150 012
Miscellaneous receipts N 0.54 033
Total R [ e
VM N Whon )
Year ended Year ended
Partlculars
31st March,2025 3151 March,2024
22 COST OF MATERALS CONSUMED i
.I;'n.'ent;::-rues at Tﬁ.e heginhing of the vear o &4.52 91,73
Add: Purchases N 567.33 S5E2.L7
Less: Inveritories at (e and of the year 67,54 B4.92

Cost of materials consumed




Notes Gripwel Fasteners Private Limited
to the Financial Statements for the yvear ended 315t March, 2025

LIRS

{IMR in Million )
Particulars Year ended ' Yur.mdm:l
315t March, 2025 315t March, 2024
23 CHANGES IN INVENTORIZS OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK-IN-FROGAESS, STOCK-IM-TRADE AND SCRAP
[ ncreese)/decrease in stlocks; -
Invertores ol the end of the year - ==_—.
Finished goeds » = 50,17 47.32
Traded Goods . 3975 4243
Work-r-progress B ] 107.47 11251
scrap - k] [54
— 19781 20280
Inventaries at the beginning of the year e ')
Finished goods s ﬁ?ii 5 4292
lraded Goods : 4243 53.25
WWork-in-progress L - 112.51 148.26
Gerap ' Q.54 043
N 20 ED 24486
Total : ¥ 1
(18R in bllion )
B iaTars Year ended Year ended
3ist March, 2025 315t March, 2024
24 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Salaries and wages [Reter Mote 33 i 24358 246,03
Contnbution to provident and other tunds e 610 b.47
txpense on employee stock optien scheme 125 013
Gtaff welfare axpenses 468 1097

UMA e Pillioe )
Year ended Year ended
FARLCaiaIs 315t March,2025 315t March, 2024
25 FIMANCE COSTS
Interast . i .89 2.63
Interest on l=aze liabilities 2 (KRS 0.51

Other horrowing costs:

Bank charges
Tatal

[IME in Millien |

Particul Year endad ‘Year ended
. 31t March,2025 318t March, 2004

26 DEPAECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES -
I:leprec-;tlnn aof tangible 2ssets [Aefar Hote 3] . _24%‘."_ ! 2417
Deprecation of right-of-use of assets [Refer Note 3] .67 o 261
Amortization of other intangible assets [Refer Mote 3] ] 0,08 E. 011

Total




MNotes Gripwel Fasteners Private Limited
to the Financial Statements for the vear ended 315t March, 2025

[ITErTEl

MR in Million )
. Year ended Year ended
FarHcinr 31st March, 2025 318t March,2024

7 OTHER E!';F‘ E_NEES
EIJ"ES, spaces and tonls consumed = Y B2.44 020
E.;h--:mﬁ&l_ﬁh'einensm L ea S 46.08
Prweer, Tuel and water - S0 N 37492
Cartage, Treight and farwarding ) bS] R ErE
Air freight 361 244
Rent ' D51 0.37
Rates and taxss c 4.53 549
Tra}rq!lii'._g__and CONVEYENCE 5 2.15 3.37
Commurication 0.5 151
5r|r‘.r|ng and stationery B e 173 119
st ~— o i
Sepairs gnd maintenance: Vefal

Building ] gas i e

Plant ard mechinery TR | 10.85

Others B 1757 1872
Office maintznance B 314 Biln
“ehicle repzirs and maintznance : 242 156
Advertizement, publicity and sales promotion .10 0,34
Legal znd professional charges i B 325 369
Directors sitting fees o an 032
ﬁ'a-,'méni to auditars [Refer Note 27.1) ] = (.62 0.50
Excharge differences (net] B (#8549} 137.66]
Bad debls 05 0.20
Statt recruitrnents B e T S
Loss on sale of fixed assets (net) - (0.oz) _bad
Caontribution towards C5R : 700 2.a0
Fimed azssts written-off 037 i
Miscellanecus 3 0.0% 026
Tatal

27.1 Payment to Auditors

(IME in plllkan ]

] Year ended Year ended
Particulars 315t March, 2035 3ist March, 2024
As Auditors: A,
Audit fees .45 (.45
Tax hudit fes - 0,10 0,10
In Other Capacity:
Tawation Matbers .05 Q.05
Out of pocket expenses 00z
Total RN [T | om
MME 0 llean )
: Year ended Year ended
Particulars 315t March, 2025 315t March, 2024
218 TAXEXPEMSES -
Ilm:nme tan recognised in the Statement of Prafit and Loss
Current tax i 3 BE.15 T4.57
Deferred Lax 3 o[22} 10:58]
Tax for earlier years inet) G2} {I.ﬂ?

Income tax expenses reparted in the statement af profit and loss

Incorme tzx recognized in 07 . :
Tax effect on net (loss)/gain on revaluation of cash flow hedges 132 [2:15}
Tax effect on net (loss)/gain on net gain on FVTOC! debt instruments 3 =

Tax effect on net (lass)/gain on re-measurement of defined berefit plans 020 | (.62}
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Recorciliation of tax expenses and the accounting profit multiplied E'Fti"e applicable tax rate

{IMRLin Million §

Particulars Year ended _ Year ended
31st March, 2025 35t March, 2024

Accounting profit betore tex from operations 244 51 2B£.25
Appliceble Tax Agte 2L17% 25.17%
Income tax expense calculated 2t applicable tax rete I B1.54 71.53
ltems giving rize to difference in tax i3

Frpenzes disallowed = - ) 254
Etﬁ-ers:____ == F - Dos (50
Current Tax Prosision 3 N
Incremental deferied Lax bizbility on ceount of timing difference (242} 0,76
Incremental deferred Lax Assels on Account of Liming dfFference 040 1.74
Deferred Tax Provision —__

Tax for earlier years (et} (0.02) 00T
Total tax expenses recognised 6331 7365

-ffective tax rate

T 25.97%
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23 EARMINGS PER EOUTTY SHARE OF FALE VALUE GF < 10 EACH
Basic RS amounts are caloulaled by dividing the prafit for the year attribuzalye to equity share holders of the parent by the waighzed average number cf

aquity shares outstaneing dusing the yaar.

LAARATE

Biluted EPS amounts are calcu azed by dividing tha profiz atributable to equity holders of the pareat by the waghed average numoer o equity shares
outstanding dusing the vear plus the weighted avarage number of equity shares that would be issoed on coneersion of all the dilutive potantial esuity

shares ints eguity shares,

The following refacts the income and share data used in the basic and dilutea EPS com putations:

[IMA in Rillor )
Year ended ‘Year ended
Particular 31st 315t
harch, 2025 March, 2034
Canm patation af Frofic [Wurmerator) e e
Net Profit after Tax as per the Statement of Profit & Loss attributable to Equity Shareholders 18120 310,58
Core putation of Weighted avarage Mamaer of Shaces |Denom "a:\:-':- { R
Adjustad Weighted Aversge number of Ezuity Shares for ca culating Diluted EF5 - 576
_.l?._ djustad’ n:'l_zl'_t_l:lgl f.\_ll:'l_?\_zl: rumber of Ezuity Shares for coculating Reesis FPS - 576 576
Cornputation of EFS - Basic [in INR) ) 3146 . 36,56
Cormputation of FPS - Tiluted :.Iﬂ:l 3146 36.56
30 Components of other comprehensive incorme (01
The disagaregation of changes to GO by each tvoe of resere in egquity is shown eiow
Effective Foreign
Net gain on
2 pertion of Retalned operations Income tax/ Total
s ndac Hlst it mf:;gz cash flow garnings translation Deferred tax
hedge differences
Re-meanurem et gains f{oaes) of delined W =
benefitplans =k Eade b 1079 : 0.0 {0591
Excharga d flereqces in wansatng the financial
statzaments of forelgn operators S = ¥
. Flfsctive portion of cash Now hedge - iy B - Lai 15.41]
Total - 17.23) 1.75) 2.0z 1500}
Effective Foreign
Het gain on
portlon of Retalned operations Income tax/ Total
ARRE AR R ARRRIEA mﬁf*g:: cash flow garnings translation Deferred tax 3
hedge differences
. menefit plans - S 147 - 12.62) 1.ES
Exchanae differences in ransiatirg the financial
staternents of ‘oreign operaticns - = 5 -
tFectve porton of cash flow hedge - .54 [215) 535
Total - 8.54 147 - {2.77] B34
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33 DISCLOSURE QM EMPLOYEE BEMEFITS

Disclosure is hereoy given in pursuant to Ind 4519 "Empiovee Benefits”,

Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity (Furded)

The following table summarises the companents of net benafit expense reccgnised in the statement of preft and los and the Tunded status and armounts
recogrised e the balarae shaet lor the gratuily plan

The principal assumations usea in determicing gratuity tor the Company’s plan is shean below:

Farticular

BRERRE gk Year ended ‘Year ended
31st March, 2025 315t March, 2024
_ Discounting Rate of Gripewel Fasteners Frivate Limited B 6.59 FAT
EFPL —_—— N —
Salary Ezcalation rate- Staff 500 .00
Salary Faaation raf L B.00 B.00
Rate of Emp oyee Turnover- Staff - - 0 1600 iE.00
Rate of Ermpoves Tarnovar- Worker B0 s 5,00
Indian sssured Indian Assures Lives
Pdarbality Rate During Ercployment Lives Morzality bortality
201214£Urgla_n:l_ 2052-14 [Urban)
rdortaliny Rate After Employment = MN.A KA
Changes in the present value of the defined henefit abligation recogrised in baancs shaat are s Mollaws:
{IME in Million]
it Yearended Year ended
st March, 2025 315t March, 2024
_F;l:_'._u::r_l_:_vilg._l_u:' of defined enefis ohli_satinn as at the seginting of sha vear A0:30 40.70
Interest cost BB _a;m
Current sendce cost 1.71 1.493
Fasl S_vz_‘rl.!i-;;ﬁ r::.:.'ﬂ.!. == ] —— — - - -
Liazility Transferred In/ Accuisitions = — (=X 5 0,36
|Ligzility Transferred Cuty Oivesmments) ifsl. il oz
|Berefit Paid Diractly oy the Employer) 13:40) (3.10]
Actuarial [Gains)/Lnsses or O gations - Due lo Charge 'r Demagraghic Assumplions = (0.19]
Actuaral [Gains)/Losses or O gations - Dreto Charge 'r Firarcizl Assumptions BN oo [1.43]
Actuanal [Szins)y/Losses on Ob gations - Due to Experience 1188} (0.86]
Fresent Value of defined benefit obligation at the #rd of the year 4358 40.20
Charges it the tar valae of plan assets recognised v the Balance sheel ars as [ollovs -
{INR In Milllan]
Year endad Year ended

315t March, 2025 32t March 2024

Qpening fair valae ol plan sasers

Interest Ircome

Contributions

Berefis paid

Return or plan asses, excluding amourt reccanzad in Interest Incorre -Gain flLoss]

Clasing fair value of plan assets
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The areour s 1o be racagnized in the Balaroe Sheser

{INR in Million)
Particular Year ended Year ended
313t March 2025 31st March,2024
_ Presentvalue of obligation as af the end of e year 14254 [A0.20)
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year et L SOREPRET
Fundad Szatus (Surp asf (Deficth) e e e L#-OEIZI:I
Met assets)(liability) to be recognised in balance sheet 142 55} [40.20)
Wet Interest cost {incon e Tapenne)
[IMA in Million)
Farticular Year anded Year ended
31t March, 2025 S1st harch, 2024
Fresent Value of Benelil Chligation al the Begiaring of the year A0.Z0 40,20
et Lab lity/(Assets) ot the Beginring 140,200 (40.70]
Intersst Cost L8 Al
Net Interest Cost for Current year 1.EB 3m
Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss
{[INR in WMillion]
Particular Year ended Year endead
315t March, 2025 31st March, 2024
CUFTENE Sarvice oot 15TE Bk
Met Interest {income] /Expense - L 291
Met periodic penefit cost recognised in the statement of profit and loss 458 454
Scpcarl recagaicad n Sratermnent of Qrher Comeprehensdve Feoms (00
{INR in Million]
Farcie il Year ended Year enced
is st March, 2025 31at March, 20214
Actuatial (Gains)/Losses on Ohligaton For the year 0.7e 1247
Returr on Flan Assets, Excluding Interest Incore B -
Met [Incorme)/Expense For the year Recognized in 2C) a.7n 1247
Reconcillation of net Liabil ty/|Assets) recognised:
{INF in Million]
Particutar Year ended Year ended
el 31st March202s 3ist March, 2024
Dpaning Net Lakility 40,19 anTo
Expenses Recognized in Statemeant of Brofit or Loss 0 4.59 454
Expenses Recognized in GO a8 B .|
Met Lanilitgihsaats) Trarsfer In 041 G35
et (Liapility]fAssets Transber Cut - 10.25]
|Benefiz Faid Directly by t7e Emaoloyer) k |24 13.10]
|Emzloyer's Contributian| - =ik b
Recognized in Balance Sheet 47 58 A0.59
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The major categories of plae assets are as follows
IMA in B lllon)
Earticular Year endad Year ended
31st March, 2025 35t March, 2024
_ Insurance fund = =
Qe Dietails
[INK In Willion]
b ‘fear ended Year anded
) 31st March, 2025 31st March 2074
Mz al Sctive P.1|-r'|m~':'\. ) o __'I.?d.O:I 19100
Per Month Salary For Active Members L Al Fo BT Ly
Weighted fverage barztion of the Projected Beneft Oolipation = 5.00 500
Averags Fapected Future Service 5.00 200
Projected Berefit Dhlig:llirlrl_ IF‘EFI 42.:5_9 A0
Prescribad Contributior For Hext Year {12 Months) *
Maturity Anayeis of Projectsd Benefit Cbligation From the Funs
{INR i Millian)
Farticular Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2025 315t March, 2024
Frojectes Benefizs Fayvab ' in Future Years From the Date of Reporting
151 Fallowing Year 0.38 8.38
2rd Eollowing Year = 461 5321
Ard Following Year RSN et 0
ath Follow ng Year 485 413
Sth Following Vear |- 3.55 a4
Sum of Years 6 Te 40 ) : W03 17.22
Sum of Years 11 ans above 9.5 10,50
aturity Analysis of Frojected Banafit Obligaticn: From the Emplayer
{INR in Milliga)
i Year ended Year anded
315t March, 2025 31st March, 2034
" mi'l.'aje.ﬂ"ed.ﬂ.:_*ne* ts Fayable in Future Years From 1 Date of Bepering T a3
1at Followi ng Year = 461 pask]
#nil Following Year 4.79 343
3rd Fo lowing Year ] ] BEE: [ 411
dth Faolowing rear - 365 447
_ Sih Folowing Year ] 20,87 1732
Sum of Yeass 6 To 10 . Shany RN o
i of Years 11 ard sbove
Sensitvity aralysis
Al lmpact of changes indizcount rate when base assumption s decreased/increased present vidlue of atligaton
{INF; in Millian)
Particular ¥ear ended Year ended
14t March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Decrease by 1H B L g

Ingremse by 1% o | 1.60) [1.43)
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B} Impact af change in salary acreaze cate when base assur pticn is decreased! rorezzed presert value of obligation

{IMR in Killian|
Particul Year ended ¥ear ended
AR 3lst March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Tecrease by 1% B 1155 {L46]
Increase by 1% LB5 156
Chimzact of chargs m withdrawal rate when Sase assumpton is decreased fincreases present viwe of ohiigation
[IMA in Million}
Particular ‘faar ended Year ended
s 315t March, 2035 31st March,2024
Decresse by 1% . - == e Q.10 |0uD3)

Increase oy 1 19 I;I] e

Sansitivity analysls s an analyss which will gree the rooverrert inoabiling i the assurrpticns were Aot aroved to be true on d ferert count This only sigrifies the
change in the ablity f the difference etwean assurred anc the actual is not following the carameters of the sersitivity aralysi

since fnvestrnent = with insurence comaany, Asses are corsidered 1o be securad

The following are the expected Interast cost for Mext year:

{IME In Million)
Farticular | Current Period Previcus Perion
Present Walue of Benefit Cbligaton &t the End of the vear 42,59 40,20
{Fa T Mo e of Flan Assets at the End of the year) 3 B
Mzt Liabil tv/lAsset) at tha End of the vear a = 4258 40.20
Iriterest Cost Bl e e £k HE
Jirterest Income) = =
Met Interest Cost for Hext Yaar 281 348
The following are the expectss expenszes to be recogrised in the Staterment of Profit or Loss for Meat Year:

JIME b Bllon)
Farticular Current Period Frevious Period
Current Secvios Tost o 1.80 1.71
Het Interest Cost o - 2.BL 288
sExzected Contributons by the Errployess) = i i

_ Exnenses Recognized 460 4,59

Defined Benefit Plar - Leave Encashmant {Unfunded]

The leave abligaticns cover the Company’s liability for sick ard earmed lgaves. The Corrpary dogs rob Aave ar unconditional right to deler seltlerent fas the
chbligation shown as currant provision balance above. Howsver zased on past experence, the Company coes not expect all ernpleyvees to take the ful amount of
accrued leave or requing payment within the nest 23 montks, therefore based o e indepeadert actuanial repart, only & certain amount of provision has been
presaated as curcenl and remaining as non-corrent Amoaret for the year erced March 31, 2055 5 2250 moillian ano for the vear ended March 31, 2024 = T 2,05
raitlion nas besn recognised in e stazement of proft ard loss,

{INR in Million |
Particulars Current Period Previous Period
Current Mon-current Current Mon-current
Campensates zbsences [urfunded) = 105 231 Loz 255

Tatal | 165 201 102 2,55
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34 SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Compaany oesales prirmarihy o the Sediress of manofzetoring of Lirkags Parts and Corponent for Off-Highway vebicles.

Chief Dperating Declsion Makes (CODM), eva dates the company's performance, based on e analys s of the vanous performance indizazors
of the cormpany, the Chie® Operating Decision Maker [C00M ) has decided that there s no reportazle ssgmrert for the Company.

Revenue information sased on location of the custorrers

[IMR in Unizs )
Bitiiiar Year erded 315t Yearended 315t
March,2025 March, 2024
Infarmation in respect of gengraphical areas e o s S el
Segment "everue from external customrers ! =
Within India 4025 A9.42
Cutside fradiz [Excluding desmec exposi) I,767.42 1,E51.04
= 1,807.67 1,940.46

The compaty disagrregate revenue from contracts with customers into categeries thet depict Fow the nature, amoust, Tmirg and
areertainty of revenue and cash fows are affectes by econormic factors, The fellowing table ilestrates the disaggregation disclosurs ty
prirnany geograghical marke, major pracect ling and timing of revenue racagnition in accordance with Ind A5 115.

Primary geographical markets {INR in Units )
Bartigiias Year ended 31st Year ended 31st
March, 2025 March, 2024
India '15._3_-2_ t4.04
Europe 935 28 BBG11
L&A 29530 AEET0
Rt 1 ol sk World - a 38.45 26.23
— — 178324 lsosoe
Szle of Scrap 2443 15,38
Total Revenue 180767 1,540,456

Major Product line

{IMR. In Units )

Year ended 31zt

Year ended 31st

rartictisy March,2025 March, 2024
3FL o e : :I:,IBIJE.E‘! 1,734.17
FhP 43540 623,15
Othears 41.05 4777
1,743.24 1,805.08
Sale of Sorap 24.43 A5.38
Total ARevenue 180767 1,540,465
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(1K in rilians|
Particular ‘fear ended 315t Year ended 315t
- harch, 2025 Barch, 2024
31 CONTIMGENT LIARILITIES AND COMBITMENTS [TO THE EXTENT ROT PROVIDED FOR):
(i Cantingent liabilities: o
{a)  Claims against tha company not acknowlodged as debt;
Sales Tax Matters = = o gt LR e 7l Fe L 1 1 o= S
ih!  Ircome Tax Demards 02 0.03
iy Sales Tax Liabliity agalnst Pending Forms 018 w 056
lig  Capltal Commitments
Eslimatad armount af contracls ramaining 1o be axecated an Capital Accounts and not prosvides for (et of ;
AZvAnces) - 4,49 488
_ 32 LEASE .
11 The fallowing s the agreegate movernant ir zase ianilines during the vear ended : "R in millinns)
Frvisadns Year ended 315t Year ended 315t
March, 2025 March, 2034
Ope B2 e =L
12.14 -
Finance cast accrued during the year D£1 51
Faymerit of leasa liabilites —=—= = . (5051 [5.54]
Galance ax 8l 31sk March, 2028 1588 8.22

The fellewing is the break-up of carrent ans non-cuerrent lease liabilities:

(MR in milliors)

it Year ended 315t ‘Year ended 31st
March,2025 March, 2024
Current kaase lishilines 537 187
Mon-current lease fabilities B G ety I &35
Tatal 1588 822

Lesze commizmants are tha undiscourtad futura cash cut fovs from the lzase cantracts whizh are nat recoread inthe messurement af leasa liahilities,
Thes include poterntial futuse payrrants relator to leases with term loss than teelve months and leases of low walue assets

MR I milllors)

i Year ended 31st Year ended 315t
el March, 2025 March, 2024
Favable within cae vear 537 B
Fayable betwern one ta five years 4.93 .24
Favahle after five years 1.59 211

Tatal 15.88 8,22
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urLksals

EL

DETAILE OF DUES TS MICAD AMD S8ALL ENTERPRISES AS DEFIMED UMDER MICAD, SKAALL AND MEDILIA ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT ACT, 2006
(BSMED, ALT 2006)

Thee r nistry of Corporate Affairs has issued notfication rouG 5 K 2022[E] cates Ootober 11, 2008 which prescrites certinn disclosares regacding amount
gayable t= micre enterprizes and small enterprises, Azcorzingly, the disclesare in respest of the amount payas'e to such erterpriEes 1as agenmade in
the financial statements based on the nlorrmation seceved Tom the wendors, The recessary information e this «egard has been giver heraunder -

{INR iR rrillicas)

Year ended Year ended

Particalar 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024

The principal amount and the interast due therecn remaining ungaid to any supplier as at the ead of
each accourting year;

Frincipa’ | 2.4.1(:' 1581

Lerest due 1lnerast - -

Hi) The amourt of interest paid e the super o leres of Section 18 of the Moo, Small and Mediom
Frilerprices Devaloprrent fct, 20046, (the Act) slong with the amount of e payrment made to the
supplier beyond the appointes day during eack accounting yesr
1] The amount ofirterest dus and paveble for the period of delay i makirg pavmrert (which have beer
paid but beyand the appo’ rted day during e year] but witkout adding the interest specified under the
st At
[iv} The amaunt of interast accrued and remaining ungaid al the end of sach year B - -
Il The amaoun: of furtnesinteses: remairing due ard payable even i the succeed g vears, until suc cata R ¥
when e interest does as above are actealy paid 1o the srall enterprss.
el C5R EXPENDITLIRE
£ per Baction 135 of the Coreparies act, 2013, a corporate soc al responsibil ty ICSE) corrmittes has baen formed by the Cormpany. The Sompary bis
spent the funds allocated for C5R activities primariy on promot g health zid program jedusation) projects waich are specified in Schedule VI of the
CompatiesAct, 20135 & follows
{IME in millions)
Patticul Year endad Year ended
articulars
31st March,2025 31st March, 2024
al Gross amount requined o be spent wy the Company during the year | 5,94 AT
hl Arrount aporovad by te Board to be spent during the year .00 F.00
Particul Year ended Year enced
articulars
31st March, 2025 315t March, 2024
1il Constraction/acouisiton of any asset - .

On parpose oier than above |i) above 350 253

Total armount spent during the year 3.50 253
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3] Arount spent during the year ending an

({IME in millions)

Farticulars

In cash

Yt bo be
pald In Tatal
cash

- March A1, 2025

Construction/acnuisition

on purposes other than above

3.50

- March 31, 2024

Constroction/soouisition

an aurposes oTner than atove

447 700

id] In case of Seclion 135(6) |Ongoing project)

[IMR in millicrs|

Particulars

Year endead
31st March, 2024

Year ended
31st March, 2035

Dpening Balance

-'With Cormpary

- In Separate C5R Unspernt S
Arrount required o be spent

Arnount spent during the year

-From Company’s bank Afc

~Fram Separate C5A Lnspent Afc
Clasing balance

-Wweth Company

-In Separate C5R Unspent Afc

Arnount reguired to be dapested in seoarate paqy account

Actual armount aeposited in Unspeat Account alter the vear end

350 4.7

A.50 4.47

(&) In case of Section 1356} (Other than ongoing oroject)

JINR i ralllions)

Partculars

Year ended
315t March, 2024

Year ended
31st March,2025

Crpening Balance

fmount requiced to be soent during the year

Amaunt Lp&r:t durui'.g the year
Saecilied Fund of Sckedule Vil within & maonths

Amoant deposited i

Cosing Balance

1 |5hortfally f Excess at the ond of the year

2l Tatal of prawvious years shorfall

hi Cetais of related party trarsactions

Where a mrovison is made with respest Lo a liabitity incurred by entering into & cantractuzl obligation,

, the movements in the prosisor durng the yeas

Reason for shatfzll The Company was in the process of identfying prosoective groject as par schedule

] Wit of 12 Companies Act, 2023

Wature of CER actiy ties:

Tducatonal & Health  Educaticnal & Reatth

facilities fac lities
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37 Related party disclosure
[I) Mame of the related parties where control exists and related parties with whom transactions have taken place and their relationships.

2) Holding Company

Country of
Mame of the Company Incorporation
niparts India Limited India

b} Fellow Subsidiaries

Country of
Name .of the Company Incorporation
Gripwel Corag Private Limited India
Uniparts JSA Limited UsA
Uriparts Olzen Inc. - - L5
Uriparts nala GmbH Germany

o) Enterprises cver wiich Key Managerlal Personnel and their relatives exercse signiflcant influence:

SKG Ergineerirg Pyt Lid.

EGA Trading Fut. Led.

Tima Trading LL® (Formerety known a5 Tima Trading Pvt. Ltd. ]
Arnaning Estates Pyt Lid.

GEP Farm LLP (Farmerly known as GKP. Farms Put. Ltd.)
Lilvernak Estate LLE (Formerely known as Bilverosk Estate Put Led. |
Bluehells Hormes Pyt, Lrd, (Formersy kaown as Otlintes Pot, 17
Sepay Drinks Pt Ltd

Charisrma Harmes LLP (Formerly known a5 Charisma Homes Pyt Ltd
Avid Sar LLP (Formerly known as Svid Maintenance LL=)
Sepoy Beverages _LP

Gripwel Fasterers (Fartnership Firm)

Farmparis Compary [Partrership Firm|

Somi Heldings (Partnershep Firm)

Indentno Internatanal (Fartnership Firm)

P Zani Farmily Trust

Son Foundatian

Pararnjit Sirgh (HUF)

Gurdeep Sani {HUF|

Lean Indiz {Pertnerstig Firm)

Maper Beg Entartzinment Inc.

7 Days Filrn LLC

The Karan Soni 2018 CG-NG Nevada Trust

The heher Sonl 3018 CG-NG Nevada Trust

The Paramjit 5onl 3018 CG-NG Nevada Troest

Gifting Trust of <aran 500

Gilting Trust of Meher Soni

Paramjit Soni Gitting Trust

Sarabjit Soni Gifting Trust

Uniparts ESOP Trust

d) Key Menagerial Fersannel [ Indwviduals heving significant influence on the Company:

Gurdesp Soni-Chairman & Managing Zirector
Paramijit Sirgh Sani- Yice Chairman & Executive Director

Parmeet Singh Zalra- Independent Director
Eharat Krishan Mathur- Independent Director (till 31st March 2024}
Ajay Chand - Independent Director [w.e.f: 8th August 2024)
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[ii] Outstanding Balarces at the end of the year

|IMR in millions)

Parizulars As at s gt
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
1. \Uniparts India Limited- in Trade Account (32.62) [42.93)
2. \dniparts USA Limited- in Trade Account 0.20 55.17
3. Uniparts India GmbH- in Trade Account 163.22 12.23
& Gripwel Conag Frivate Limited- in Trade Account ] (460
5. Uniparts Qlsen Inc.- in Trade Account 1639 | 2291
Disclosure in respect of Aelated Party Tranzactions during the year * ¢
e o {INR Ir millionst
Year ended Year ended
Particulars Relationship 31st March 2025 3lst March 2024
1 Purchase of Goods/Samples/Packing znd Services
Urigarts India Lirmited Halding Campany 57128 B2E.L0
Grlpwel Conag Private Limiced Fellow Subsidiary 25,86 1837
Unigparts inda GrbH - Fellow Subsidiary 1350 ___“"1“3.5.'-'
Uriparts Olsen e Fellow Subsidiary - e
B11.04 65844
2 Job Wwork Expernses =
Uniparts Indiz Limited o Holding Company 144 057
Unigperts Indig GmbH Fellow Subsidiary - 031
1.44 0.88
3 Sale of Goods
Unigarts ind:@ Limited Helding Company 15,82 18 665
Unlparts india GmbH - FQIE-.;HEI.;I.':sid-ar-,- LY O 24_639_ | . 33&_83
Unlzarts LSS Limited Fellow Subsidiary 250011 33457
Unigarts Qlsen Inc. Fellow Sabsidiary 2E4.5F 37511
- 775.85 1,063.17
4 Other ncome o
Unigarts Indig Limited Heolding Company 0.10
Urizarts Indiz GmbH Fellow Subz diary .14 011
0.24 011 |
i
L% lease Rertals |
Urigarts India Limited Hizlding Cempanyg GO0
Zani Haldings - r_nTefp.ri;es cver which Key =
henagsnal Personnel 2nd their
relelives exercise signilicant et S
Influence
B e 174 118
6 Sales of Capital Goods BE
Sepoy Drinks Pyl Ltd R Enterprises over which Key
ranagenial Personnel and thelr
relztives exercise significant el
irfluence
. : : 12,00
7 Electricity Charges pald
Avid Maintenance LLP EniLrEI;E; over wiich Kcl.r- A el
Managerlal Personrel and thelr |
relatives exercise significant |
irfluence 0.28 |
(.26 0,28
B Current Account Receipts
Uniparts ndia Lirmited Holeirg Comparry TR
e 16.72 1897
S Current Account Payments
_-bnigars indiz Limited Holding Company |26.72} {18.57)
AT (16.72] {19.57)
A=

{;,.-..-
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UHIZAATS
10 Sitting Fees
tharat Krishan Mathue Irdeperdent Director - 0,10
Parmeet Singh Kalrz - Indeperdent Director 0.10 o012
- = 0.10 0.22
11 Dividend =ajc
Uniparts India Limited Holding Compary 26485 50111
264.95 50111
12 Menagerigl Remunerstion™*
Iyathir Singh Sethi ‘Whole time Director 17.63 =
Gurdesp Soni key WManageral Personnel 3008 3155
== = - Sl 42,71 ~32.55
| 13 ESOP Expenses to Key Managerial Persen [Refer below note 24]
Iyethir Singh Selni Whole time Direclor 0.83
0.83 -

Motes;
documents a5 prescribed by the Income Tax Act, 1961 to prove that these trenzactions ere gt arm's lengeh and the aforesaid legislation will not impact on
**Excludes contribution to employee retirement/post retirement and other employee benefits which are based or actuznal valuation done an an averzll

Compary basis
*¥Rased on ESOP valuation on the date of grant, the fair value of grant is cheraed to stetement of profit & los: or the basis of vesting perod.
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38 Ratio as per the schedule |1l reguirements

{INA if Willies )

H Year ended ‘Year ended
3ist March, 2025 Aist March, 2024
{al Current Ratio
Tortal curreat assets 553,45 g52.34
Total curroat Lisbilities I6E.ST 15556
Current ratio 221 2,50
% Change from pravious yaar -14.75%
1B} Dbt -Equily Ratic i g= =

T DectiBerrowing) } 11187 20,31
Total Equlty ABE. 17 HE5.25
et Fruity Ritin N 024 016
% Change from pravious year i A7 5% 14

(cl Debt Service Coverage Ratio #

Profit aftes tax for the vear ) o - R 1B1.20% 410,59
Adg: Mon cash operating experse and finarce cost AL £ _Aan
Lepreciation and amortisation exgense 34.57 26,89
Irteres P50 3.14
LossProfit] o1 sale of fxed assets (003 n.o7
Fixec assets writtzn-off 037 Lo M
Earnings avallable for debt services 13362 240,69
Inieest paid S 750 .12
Leaszz repayment - _ e 5,54
Total interest and principal repayments 1259 268
Debt service coverage ratia 17.7F 7.72
¥ Crange from previous year -35.20%

Reason for change more than 25%: il L,

o [d) Return on Equty Ralic

 Proftafter i for the perica / vear 18130 058
Auerage Equity 51102 B96.34
Return an equily ratio - 35.46% 30.24%
% Change from previous year - A7 25 T
Reason for change more than 25%:

- _.[Ta:fl_ -_.I-'Fen;r turnover ratio T e A
Cost of materals corsumed 56441 B03.98
Changes i ineerntories nf "|'i'\.h|-_!j_ _Enrld_:._. l.\.'nrk-in-prl::g_rr:::'\_._:!'lf:_s_.:_:_r_u_p" = 436.37 48053
Cost of goods soid - 1,000,786 1,088.51
Auarage InveTtory 28965 22818
Inwenbory tusnover Fatio 345 3.32

£ W Changefrompreviousvesr 000000000 0000000000000 &= 105

If) Trade Receivables turrover ratio e
Szle of goods and services LEEI?.EE' 194045
Ayerage account secevable 24E 53 32798
Trade receivagles turnover ratio 726 5.492
% Change from previous year 22.T4%,
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i) Trade payabies turnover ratic e

Furchases B 998,71 1,030.64
Buerage lrade payabies Toaaay 11732
Tr-a:dl_- payables turnover ratio B - 255 870
‘ﬁ{-t_h;n-ge fram previcus year ] -170%

B 1} Met capital tumover ratio :
Kevenas from oparatons - = LEOTET 194045
Mat werking cagital* [refer note b;iuwb 324,83 40683
Met capital turnover ratio : 555 477
% Change from previous year _ 16E5W

Mote: Met working capital is caloulsted by reducing total current tiabilities fram total
cuUrent assess

11} Met profit ratic

Frofic afer tax for the l.near_ = : .18-]_.'.2IZI 1 110,58
Revenue from operaticns 120767 1,540,406

B Net profit ratio 1007% 101.85%
% Change from previous year T T

Reason for change rore than 25%:

1] Return on Capital erployed

Frofit hefore tax 2dd 51 28425

Firarce cost 9.7L 523

Earn-i;g;."tlef.ure interest and tax I54.37 288,48

Capital employed ] 556,75 620.65
[T — A66.1 1 | 55515

- Maz Debt* ey BATL

Intargbole r— 024 033

Return on capital ernployed A5.66% A6 G4
% Charge from previous year . -2.10%

Reason for cnange morne tran 25K

i) feturn on Irvestment
Earn'ngs before interest and tax 25432 JR5 48
swerageshareholder's Equity . 511.02 BS54
Return on lnvestmeant S A9.75% 41.57%
% Change fram orevious year — 19.67%

Tota Debt®= Bormwings - Cash & cash equivalants
W yariaatan in Deot Secvice Coverage Rato anc Debt-Equity Ratic due bo increases in bank Sormosng.
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EL] HEDGING ACTIVITIES AND DERIVATIVES

The Compary uses foreign currency dencmingted borrowings and foreige exchange forward contracts for the purpase of hedging ts currercy
risks, These contracts are nat interded fon trading ar specalation. The foreign exchange forward contracts are dezigrated as cesh How hedges.

LUdIPAKTS
HE

Cash flow hedges

Foreign exchange forward contracts mezsured 2t fzir value through OCl are designated es bedging instiuments in cash fow hedges of farecast
sales in US doller. These forecast tramsactions are highly probeble,

Whhile the Company alsa enters into other forelgn exchange forward cortracts with the intention to reduce the foreian exchange risk ot expected
sales and purchases, these other contracts are not designated in hedge relationships end are measured at fair value theeogh prafit or loss

Tre forzign excharge forward contract balances vary with the level of expected foreign corrency sales and purchases ang changes in foreign
excharge forward rales,

Tre terms of the foreign currency forward contracts match the terris of the expected highly probaile forecast transactions. &5 a resull, no hedge
ineffectiveness arise requiring recoanition through profit or loss, Notional emounts of outstasding farward cortracts are 25 follows

{IMR in Mitlion]
Voot =nded Year ended
Fi 24
5 Mo Mame of Bank 31st March,2025 #lst Marchia0
Farelgn INR Foreign e
Currency Currancy
1 Forward Contract ysp  edeing of nighly 478 413.17 B.55 533,55
probakle sales = LS4 el P
Hedgl hignl
3 Farward Contract gug  'edeing of hlgnly 150 5266 3.10 240,81
probable sales s i
Hedging of highly
3 Forward Cantract GEP i 3 it (.30 3058 002 159

probakle sales

The cash flow hedges of the expected future sales durlrg the year ended Warch 31, 2025 were gssested to be effective ard an anrealised
profit/i_oss) of #7.23) million, with 2 deferred tax aszetz of T1.22 million refatirg to the bedging instruments is Included In GO Comparatively,
the cash flow hedges of the expected foture seles during the year ended March 31, 2024 were asseszed to be effective and 2n unrealised profic of
8,54 rollion, with a deferred tax hability of #2.15 rmibar was included in OC1 in respect of these contracts,

Reclassifications to proft ar loss quring the vear gaing or losses included in OClare shown in Mote 30

40 FINAMCIAL RISE MANAGEMENT ORIECTIVES AMD POLICIES

The Compeny's principal financial lizbilities other than derivatives, comprise lears and borrewings, trade payables, employee related peyables ang
clher peyvables The main purpase of these finznclal lakilitizs |s to finance the Campany's operatiors. Tre Jompeny's principel financial assets
Include loan to employees, trade recevables & other receivables and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly frorm its aperations,

The Compeny & exposad to market risk, credit rizk 2nd fliquidity risk. The Company’s senior management aversess the managemert of these risks,
The Compary’s senior management is supported by 2 Audil committes that adwises on financlal rsks ard the zpzropriats financial risk
povernarce framewark fior the Company. The Audit cammittes prowides assurance that the Company's financial risk activities are goverred by
appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, meazered and managed in accordence with the Company's policies and
risk objectives, Al derivative activitics for risk menagement purpoeses are carried cut by experiznced members fram the senicr management whao
have the relevart expertise, zppropriate skills and supervision. It iz the Company's policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes
may bz underzzkern. The Board of Qirectors reviews end agrees policies lor manzgirg each of these fisks, which are summarized as below.

a) Warket risk

nearket risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrament will fluctuate becavse of changes in market prices, Markst
prices are subject to commodity price risk, foreigr exchange risk and interest rate risk,
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HHDLE T

The financlal instruments that are affected by these include loans and borrowing, deposits, available-for-sale irvestments 2nd derivative financial
instruments. We, from time to time, undertake arelysis in relation 1 the amoust of our net gebt, the ratea of fleed to floating interest rates of our
debl and our fingncial instruments that are in foresgn currencies. We wse dervative financial instruments such as foreign exchange contracts to
marage cur exposures to foreign exchange fluctuations.

b) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cazh flows of a finarcial instrument will Tluctuate because af changes In market interest
rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of charges in marker intersst rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with
floating interest Fates, The interest rate on remaining lozns lexcept vehicle leans), although fixed, is subject Lo periodic review by lending banks /
finarcial institutions in relztior to their respective base lending rales, which may vary cver a period result of any change ir the moretary policy of
the Reserve 3ank of India
{IMR im Million )
Year ended Yearended
Particular
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
varlable rate borrowings h s
Lang Term - - =
ShorLTerm 111.87 80,31
Total Varizhle rate borrowings 111.87 90,31
Fized rate borrowings
Long Term - - -
Short Term B - -
Tetal fised rate borrawings , =
Total B 12187 20,31

*Excluding Billz discounted with Bank

Interest rete sensitivity

Variabile interest rate loans are exposed to Interest rate risk, the impact or probic or loss before G may Be as follows:
{IMR in Millian ]

Effect on profit and equity
Particular Year ended Year ended
Jist hdarch, 2025 3lst March, 2024

Interest rate - increate by 100 basis prnts (100 bps)* i {312 (01500

Interest rate - decrease by 200 Basis points (100 bps)® 112 0,50

)

Holding all other variable constant

Tre assemed movemest in basis poirts far the intarest rate sersitivity arzlysis is besed or the currently abservable market snvirenment, showieg
a significanthy higher volgtility thar in prior years.

Fareign currency risk

Forzign currency risk is the risk thet the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate becaase of changes in foreign exchange rates.
The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in forelgn exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s expart revenue and oeg term foreign
currency horrowings.

The Campany have lang term agreemants with its mzjor cusiomers, the company tace {orgign exchange risk in respect of (1) cur fareign currancy
loars, in respect of which selectively redge currency exchange rate risk, Jill currenay mismatches between income and expenditares, which the
company seek e mangge 25 much as possible by matching income cerrency to expendizure currency, and liii} currency translation for the surpose
of preparing conselidated finzncial statements, on account of global operations.

The pericd end foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged by a denvative instrument or otherwise are given below:

[INR In Milllon |
] ) Year ended Year ended
Particular Currency Description 315t March, 2025 31zt Marnch, 2024
UsD sale 7 232

=UA Sale 112 02l
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ALD Sale 0.11 028
GaP tale 0.23 031
b} Payibles L5 Purchase | pEz . 0.5%
EUR Purchase =
cl Loans U5k PCFC Logn/PSFC Loan .77 i
EUR PCFC Loan/®5FC Loan 050
d Bank uso EEFE _ 0.00 013
EUR FEFE 0.00
) Other Recelvable usD R 0.00
YEM L
f Other Fayebies 250 000 S
GEP 00s Sl
ELIR 0.0 .00
Fareign currency sensitivity
‘With respect to the above unhedged exposure the sersitivily is as follows:
(INR in Millian )
Effect on profit and equity
Particular Year ended ¥ear ended
31st March, 2025 3Lst March, 2024
I4R/US D-Increase by 5% 10.07 am
IMA/EUR-Ircresse by 5% 3.20 0,92
~ INR/GEP-Increase by 5% 095 Lia2
INA/IFY-Increase by 5% 002
INAZALID- nerease by 53 030 0.77
INR/USD Decrease by 5% . R (L
IMA/EUR-Decrease by 55 - (3200 e
INA/GBP-Decrease by 5% (0,96} 11.63)
INR/IPY-Decreese by 5% (D.02) T
_ IN3/AUD-Decrease by 5% {030} 1077
d) Cormaodity price risk

Commedity price risk is Lhe possipility of impact fram changes in the prees of raw materials such as steel, which we use in the marufacture of our
products. While we seek to pass or input costincrezses 1o our customers, we may nol be able ta Tully gokieve this inall siteatons or at zll times.

Comrnodity price sensitivily

&5 the Company has a back ta back pass through arrengemerts for volatility in raw material prices there is no impact on the prefit and les: and

equity of the Company.
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&) Credit risk

[RLYECTN i)

Credit risk is the rizk that counterparty will naot meet its cbligatiors under a finarcial instrumest or custemer contract, leading to 2 financial leas.
The Campany is caposed ta credit risk from 1ts operating actwties {orirmarlly trade recenvables] and from its finaroing activities, including deposits
with banks and financizl institutions, irvestment in mutual funds, other receivebles and deposits, loreign exchange transactions and other
financial instrumernts,

In relation te credit risk arising from fingncing activities, we monitor our credil spreeds ene financial strergth on a regalar basis, and based cn our
Ch-RRing assessment af courterparmy risk, we adjust aur exposure to various counterparties.

“or the period endad March 31, 2025, and vear ended March 32, 2024 our provision for doubtful debts iz ameunted ta 2 Wil ard 2 Ml
respestively

f] Liquidity risk

Ligpusbediny res is the rlsk that the Company well encocunter difficulty in meeting the obligations essocieted with its financial liailitics thal are setlled
by delivering cash or another finarcial asset. The Jompeny's approach to mareging liguidity is 1 ensure, as far as possible, that it will have
sufficient Bguidity oo meet jts lagilities when they are due, ueder botr normal gndd stressed condtions, without incurring urscceptable losses or
resking damage to the Compary’s reputation and ongoing business.

The Campany menagss ligudity rizk by meintainirg adequate reserves, banking facilitics and reseree barrowing facllitles, by cortinuauszly
menitoring lorecast and actual cesh flows, ard by matckieg the maturity profiles of financial assets and Labilizies.

[IMR in Million |
Year ended Year endad

PAticaar 34st March, 2025 31st March,2024
Total Committed working cagital limits from Banks o 225.00 225,00
Less: Ulized working cazital limit ) - 111.87 50,31
Untilized werking capital limit ) 113.13 134,59
£ hetunties of financials lizbilities

The tables below analyse the Company's finarcial labilities into relevant maturity garoupings based on their contractual maturities. The amognt
disclosed in the table are the contractuzl undiscounted cash flow.

{IMR im Million )
S Year ended Year ended
315t March, 2025 31st March, 2024
1 Long Term Borrowings e ——
Upto 1 year Bt o
_ Between 1to5years | E kLAl
Crer B oypears t 23

2 shart Teim Barrawings
Upta 1 year - 111.87 9031

Between Lo 5 years 2 =

Cryzr 5 years - : - 7 -

-~ Trzde Payzbles T T
Lpto 1 year 107,62 135.95
Hetwesn 1105 years E 5
Over 5 years _ _ : -

4 Lease Liabilities

Upto 1 year ' ) ; 5.37 187
Batwesn 1to 5 years Ba2 .24
Crver 5 years }fxﬂ 1l

23537 | 27448
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41 Financial Instruments by category and Fair value hierarchy
Set ot below, 15 2 comparison by class of the carrying amourts 2nd fair velue of the Company's financial instruments, other than those with
carrying amounts that are reascnakble approximetions of feir values:
Carryieg amournt Fair valug
Particular Level of iInput Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
Alst March, 2025 31st March, 2024 315t March, 2025 3ist March, 2004
Financizl Assets
Loan ta Emplayees ¥ q3:37 034 0137 .34
Securily Deposils  leRiE e EERROREh Bl e Sl o L
Derivative instruments Level 1 Q.00 A0 3.80
Investments Level 3 2B ES 61,32 WO o T
Trade Receivables 23268 26517 1 Eﬁ._;l':'
Cash & Bank Balances 2165 24,50 i B0
Cther Receivables 0.07 0.06 0.05
Financial Liabilites
Rarrowings 121.87 90,33 111.87 o031
Trade Tavables _ laveR 125.95 107.62 12595
Leate Liabilities e aaed e 522 15.88 822
Durivative instruments Lewel 1 T e = 3.3 =
The management azsested that the fair velue of cash and cask equivalent, trade receivatzles, dervative instroments, trade payebles and other
currart tinancial assets and labilities spprosimate their carrying ameunts rgely due ta the short teres maturities of these instruments.
The fair value of the financial essets ard labilities is incleded at the armoent 2t whick the instrument could be exchanged ina current transaction
petwesn willing parmies, other than in & forced or liquidztior sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values: |
i Lang-term fized-ratz and verizble-rate reczivablas are svaluated by tre Company besed on parsmeters such as isdividual cregitworthiness of the

custarmer. Based an Lhis evaluation, allowanoes are takes info acooust for the expected coed it losses of these receivables.

Tre fair value of ather non-current firencial lizbilities and secarity deposits, is estimated by discounting future cash flows uzing 10 year
governrment bond rates In addition to beng sensitive 1o 2 reascnably possizle change in the forecast cazh flows or the discount rate, the fzir
walue of the equity instraments i5 also sensitee to & reasonably possible change in the growth rates.

Further the maragement assessed that the far value of loan to employees approximate their carrying emounts largely due to discounting el rates
which are an approzimation of current lending rates.

Tee Company enters Inte desdvative firgnclal instrements with various counterparties, principaily financizl institutiors with investrment grade
cradit ratings. Foreige exchange forward contracts are valued using valugtior tecrniques, which ermploys the cse of market observable inpats. The
mast frequently applied veluation technigees inclede forwarg pricing using present value calculagtions. The madels incorporate variocus inouts
ncluding the credis quality of counterparties, foreign exchange spot and farward rates, yield curves of the respective currercics, currency basis
spreads betweer the respective currencies and forward rete curves of the underlving, Al dervative contracts are fully cash coliateszlized, thersby
elirminating bolk cownterparty and the Campany's own nen-performarce risk. Az at March 31, 2025 the marked-toe-market value of dervative
asset postans 5 net of a credit valuation edjustment stznbutable to derivative counterparty default risk. The changes in countersany creair risk
~zd ro material effect on the hedge elffectiveness assessment for derivatives desigrated n hedge relatorships and ather financizl instrurments
recognised 2t fair value,

Feconciliation of fair value measurement of financial assets classified as FYTOC

{INR in Million )
: Year ended Year ended
SentiLalae 313t March,2025 315k March, 2024
Derivatives

Ferward Currency Contract -3.43 380
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[ETIOER)

a4z Capital maragement

The capltal includes issued equty cepital 2nd other equity reserves stoributable to the equity moiders of the company. The pomary objective of the
compeny's capital management is to maintain aplimur capetal structers ta reduce cost of capital and te masimize the shareholdervalue.

The company manzges its cepital structure and mekes sdiustments in Fght of chasges in ecorames conditions ard the requirerents of the
firencial coverants which otherwise would permit the Banks to call loans and barrowings in pert or in whele, In order to maintain or adjust Lre
capital structure, the company may 2djust the dividend payment to shereholders, retarn capilal o sharerolders o issus nes shares,

{IMR in Millian )
Particular Year ended 315t Year ended 315t
Warch, 2025 March, 2024
T Borrowings ) ' 111.87 an.31
Lo cash and other lguld assets i ?1.65 2460
Net Dbt = 022 G571
Equity = 466,77 555,25
Debt/Equity ratic ~ 0,19 012
43 Other Disclosure i o
i There were fa tfransaction which have not heen recorded in tre books of zccounts that has been surrerdered or disclosed 25 inoome durag the
vear i the tex assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such 25, seerch oF survey or 2ny ofer relevant provisiars of the Income Tax Act,
1861
(1) Thers was na Immavable Froperty during the yeer (other thzn properties whers the -f-;;ﬁ:-pc ny 15 tre lessee and the leaze agreemerts duly
preculed in favagr of the lessee] whnse title deeds are not held in names of the Company.
(il There were nn proceedings initiated or pending 2gsinst the Company tor holding any Benami property wnder the 3enaml lranszoticns
[Prohibition) Act, 1288 (43 of 1988) ard rules made thereurder
_ 'Ei\-I There were no transactians and  or outstanding belances with struck off Companies under section 248 ol l.'.'l:' Companies At 202-3 ar sttl-;:'_h;E'_U_
of the Companies Act 1556,
Ml The Compary does net have any charge which is yes to be registered with the Registrar of Companies bevond the stalutory period
(il The Compary has irwvested Turds in sobsidiaries directly ar rhrn-ugh its whalsy owned subsidiasiez. Tre Compeny Res complied with the numker of
layers presceibesd cnder section 2 (87) of the Companies Act, 2003 read with the Compenies {Restoctior on rumber of Cavers) Rules, 2007
il The Cc-mpar'.-,; hgs rat traded of invested in Cryptocurrency or Yirwal Currsncy during the financial year
[ Durirg the vear ended March 32, 2025, Lhe Compasy was neta party to 2ny approved scheme which needs zporovel from s competent authority
in Lerms af Sections 230 1 237 of the Companies Act, 2013,
(] ke Company has mot been declared a3 withyl detzulter by any Dank or fi-':i'rlciul irslitulian os po-.-‘er"l_'nPET o any goverrrment authority.
44 “revious Year figures have been re-grouped) re-arranged) re-classificd wherever necessary tc_u:c-r'espon-: with the current year's classificaton,
= disclosure,
A per our report of even date attached. For and an behalf of Board of Directors of
For 5.0 vakhih AND CO. Gripwel Fasteners Private Limited
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